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716-855-7300
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July 31, 2015

Mr. Robert M. Graber
Clerk
Erie County Legislature

25 Delaware Avenue
Buffalo, New York 14202

Re: NFTA Board Minutes
Dear Mr. Graber:

Enclosed for your information and files please find a copy of the Minutes from the
Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority’s Annual Board Meeting held on June 25,

2015.
Very truly yours,
David J. State
General Counsel
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSIT METRO SYSTEM, INC.
REGULAR BOARP MEETING
JUNE 25,2015 12:30 PM
MINUTES

1. REGULAR BOARD MEETING - June 25, 2015 - MINUTES

A. CALL TO ORDER 3

B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (May 28, 2015 Regular Meeting)

C. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT 4
2. NFTA CORPORATE REPORT 5

A. Audit and Governance Committee Report (Henry Sloma)
B. Consolidated Financial (John Cox)
C. Corporate Resolutions (Kim Minkel)

1} Approval of Financial Statements for the Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority 8
and Niagara Frontier Transit Metro System, Inc. for Fiscal Year Ending March 31,
2015

2) Authorization for NYSDOT Aviation Capital Project Grant Agreement, Air Cargo 69
Lighting Improvement Project, PIN No. 5A00.99, BNIA

3) Authorization for Collective Bargaining Agreement, Buffalo Niagara International 71
Airport Superior Officers Association, NFTA
4) Authorization for Agreement, Medical Testing Services, NFTA 73
5) Authorization for Agreement, Engineering Printing Services, NFTA 76
6) Authorization for Lease Amendment Agreement, Traci Takacs d/b/a Replete Nutrition, 77
247 Cayuga Road
3. AVIATION BUSINESS GROUP REPORT 78

A. Aviation Committee Report (Adam Perry)

B. Financial Update (Bill Vanecek)

C. Business Update (Bill Vanecek)

D. Aviation Resolutions (Kim Minkel)

4. SURFACE TRANSPORTATION BUSINESS GROUP REPORT 30

A. Surface Transportation Committee Report (Bonita Durand)

B. Financial Update (Tom George)

C. Business Update (Tom George)

D. Surface Transportation Resolutions {(Kim Minkel)
1} Authorization for Agreement, Catenary and Insulator Replacement Phase 2, LRRT 83
2) Authorization for Agreement, Design Support Services, CNG Fueling Station, Metro 85

3} Authorization for Procurement, Traffic Signal Priority Equipment, Niagara Street 87
Corridor, Metro

4) Authorization for College/University Pass Agreement, Erie Community College 39

5) Authorization for College/University Pass Agreement, Canisius College S0

6) Authorization for Agreement, Enhancement Services, NITTEC 91

5. GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT (Dave State)
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6. EXECUTIVE SESSION
7. ADJOURNMENT 93
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Reguiar Meeting
June 25, 2015

CALL TO ORDER

A. Meeting Called to Order

Vice Chairman Sloma called the meeting to order at approximately 12:30
p.m.

B. Approval of Minutes of the NFTA Regular Board Meeting held on
May 28, 2015

It was moved by Commissioner Gurney, seconded by Commissioner
Wilcox, that the Minutes of the May 28, 2015 Regular Meeting of the
Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority and Niagara Frontier Transit
Metro System, Inc., be accepted and approved.

AYES: SLOMA, DEMAKOS, DURAND, ANSARI, GURNELY,
HICKS, WILCOX
NOES: NONE
Comm. 16M-7
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Regular Meeting
June 25, 2015

C. Executive Director Report

Executive Director Kimberley Minke! notified the Board of a power outage at Frontier Station
which would minimally affect service until repairs could be completed. She advised the Board
of seasonal service changes which were implemented on June 21%. Service adjustments are
done in response to ridership, school adjustments and construction projects. Of the 64 routes the
NFTA operates 29 experienced changes including scheduled reroutes, discontinued segment
routes and increased headways. One of the routes, the 551 which is a segment of the 55 service,
was cut due to low ridership. Additionally, during review of that route it was discovered that
Rural Niagara Transportation provides duplicative service in that area. She informed the Board
that a meeting hosted by Niagara County Legislature Chairman Bill Ross, Majority Leader Rick
Updegrove and Minority leader Dennis Virtuoso to discuss funding and service in Niagara
County would be held on July 15™.

She also notified the Board that the NFTA received the 2015 Project of the Year award for the
“Transit Data Cloud” project which is our Traveler Information System. The award was
presented at the June ITS-NY 22™ Annual Meeting.

The Executive Director also acknowledged Ch. 2 News Daybreak show traffic reporter Dave
Cash, an NFTA employee, who received an Emmy award for his outstanding reporting during
the November 2014 blizzard.
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Regular Meeting

June 25, 2015
2. NFTA CORPORATE REPORT
A. Audit and Governance Committee Report
B. Consolidated Financial
C. Corporate Resolutions
Comm. 16M-7
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Regular Meeting
June 25, 2015

Corporate Resolutions

i. Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority, Acceptance of Corporate Resolutions
2. C. (1) through 2. C. (6)

I. Approval of Financial Statements for the Niagara Frontier Transportation
Authority and Niagara Frontier Transit Metro System, Inc. for Fiscal Year Ending
March 31, 2015

2. Authorization for NYSDOT Aviation Capital Project Grant Agreement, Air Cargo
Ramp Lighting Improvement Project, PIN No. 5A00.99, BNIA

Authorization for Collective Bargaining Agreement, Buffalo Niagara International
Airport Superior Officers Association, NFTA

L3

4, Authorization for Agreement, Health Works WNY, Inc., Medical Testing
Services, NFTA

5. Authorization for Agreement, Zenger Group, Engineering Printing Services,
NFTA
6. Authorization for Lease Amendment Agreement, Traci Takacs d/b/a Replete

Nutrition, 247 Cayuga Road
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Regular Meeting
June 25, 2015

CORPORATE:

2. C. (i) Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority, Aceeptance of Corporate
Resolutions 2. C. (1) through 2. C. (6)

The Executive Director advised that Items 2. C. (1) through 2. C. (6) have been discussed with
the Board of Commissioners of the NFTA, and the Board is unanimously in favor of all subject
Resolutions.

Whereupon, it was moved by Commissioner Durand, seconded by Commissioner Gurney that the
following Resolution be adopted:

“RESOLVED, that the Resolutions of the Niagara Frontier
Transportation Authority, identified as numbers 2. C. (1) through
2. C. (6) and dated June 25, 2015 as set forth herein, be and hereby
are accepted and approved in their entirety.”

AYES: SLOMA, DEMAKOS, DURAND, ANSARI, GURNEY, HICKS*,
PERRY*, WILCOX

ABSTENTION: PERRY [*ltem 2. C. 3 only]
HICKS [*Item 2. C. 3 and *Item 2. C. 4 only]

NOES: NONE

ADOPTED

CORPORATE 2. C. (i) o  PAGE -i-
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Regular Meeting
June 25, 2015

CORPORATE:

2. C. )] Approval _of Financial Statements for the Niagara Frontier
Transportation Authority and Niagara Frontier Transit Metro
System, Inc. for Fiscal Year Ending March 31, 2015

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board approve the Authority’s Financial
Statements for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2015.

INFORMATION: The New York State Public Authorities Accountability Act requires that ail
financial reports completed pursuant to Section 2800 of the Public Authorities Law be approved
by the Board and certified by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

FUNDING: No funding is required.

“RESOCLVED, that the Board hereby approves the Financial
Statements for fiscal year ending March 31, 2015 for the Niagara
Frontier Transportation Authority and the Niagara Frontier Transit
Metro System, Inc.”

CORPORATE 2. C. (1)
Comm. 16M-7
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NIAGARA FRONTIER
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Financial Statements

March 34, 2015 and 2014

Comm. 16M-7
Page 10 of 94



NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Componemt Unit of the State of New York)

March 31, 2015 and 2014

Page

Independent Auditors’ Report 1
Managemem Certification:

Management’s Certification of the Financial Statements 4

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 5
Management’s Discussion and Analysis {Unaudited) i-xIv
Financial Statements:

Balance Sheets 25 of March 31, 2015 and 2014 6

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the years ended March 31,

2015 and 2014 7
Satements of Cash Flows for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 8
Notes to Financial Statements 9-34

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited):
Schedules of Funding Progress for Other Posremployment Benefits and Pension Plans 37
Addivonal Infonnaton:
Combining:
Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2015 and 2014 38
Schedules of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 1n Net Position for the years ended
Mareh 31, 2015 and 2014 39
Schedules of Cash Flows for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 40-41
Independent Auditors” Report on Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performied in Accordance with
Governoent Auditing Standerds 42-43
Indepeadent Audnors’ Report on Compliance with Secuon 2925(3)(f) of the New York State Public
Authonnes Law 44
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The Board of Commissioners
Niagara Frontier Transporiation Avthority

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Niagara Frontier Transportadon Awvthorty (the
Authority) (a component unit of the State of New York), 2 business-type acuvity, as of March 31, 2015 and
2014, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes o the financial statements. We have also audired the Aurhori’s
internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2015, based on fwiernal Control — Integrated Framewark
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizadons of the Treadway Commission {COSO).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial
Reporting

Management s responsible for the preparation and fair presentabon of these fmancial statements
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and mainrenance of effective internal control over financial reporting relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material nisstatement, whether
due to fraud or crror. Management is also responsible for its assertion about the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting included in the accompanving Manmgesent’s Repost an Internal Control Goer
Financial Reporting.

Anditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and an opinion on the Authorisy’s
mremal control over financial reporting based on cur sudits. We conducted our audits of the financial
statemients in accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of Amerdea and the
standards applicable to finaacial audits contained w Geoermment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comprroller
General of the United States and our audit of internal control over financial reportng in accordance with
attestation standards established by the American Insttute of Certified Public Accountants, Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance abour whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting
was maintatned in all material respects.

An rudit of financial statements involves performing procedures o obtain audir evidence about the anvounts
and disclosures i the financial siatements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
inchuding the assessment of the risks of marerial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due o
fraud or error. Tn making those risk asscesiments, the auditor considers internal conlrol selevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to desipn audit procedures that are
appropriaie in the circumsmnces.  An audit of fiancial statements also ncludes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by managemenr as well as evaluating the overall presearation of the financial statements. An audit of internal
control over fimancial reporting involves obtaining an understanding of intemal control over {ancial
reporting, assessing the cisk that a matenal weakness exists, and testing and evaluatrng the design and
aperating effectivencess of nternal conrrol based on the assessed risk, and performmg other such procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

Comm. 16M-7
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We believe rhat the audit evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basts for our
audit opinions,

Definitions and Tuberent Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

An entity’s internal control over financial reporting is a process effected by those charged with governance,
management, and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the preparation of
rehable financial staternents in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. An entity’s internal control over Guancial reporting inclades those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records thar, in reasonable detail, accuratcly and faidy reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assers entily; (2) provide reasonable assurance thatr reansactions are
recorded as necessary to permil preparation of financial statements in accordance with nccountmg, principles
generally ‘lCCLpTLd mn the United States of America, and that receipts and expenditures of the entity are being
made only i accordance with authorizations of management and those charged with governance; and
(3} provide reasonable assurance regacding prevention, or timely deteerion and eorrection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the entity’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
stafements.

Because of its inherent limirtions, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent, or detect and
correct misstatements. Also, projections of any evaliation of effectiveness to future petiods are subject to
the risk that coatrols may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, oz that the degree of
compliance with the policies of procedures may detesiorate.

Opinions

[n our opmion, the fmancial statements referred 1o above present faiely, in all material respeets, the financial
position of the Authority as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
Aows for the years then ended in accordznce with tccounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Also in our opinion, the Authority maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2015, based on Jnternal Contro] — Integrated Framework, issued by
the COSO.

Other Matters

Requived Supplementary Informeativn

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require thal management’s
discussion and analysis (MID&A) on pages i through xiv (preceding the financial statements) and the Schedule
of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefits and Pension Plans on page 36 be presented to
supplcmem the financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial staremsents,
15 required by the Govermmental Aceoonting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the financial statements 1o an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certan limited pmccduru to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing srandards penerally ncmplcd in the Unired States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s eesponses o our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we abtained
during our andil of the financeal statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with suffictent evidence to express an opinton
or provide any assurance.
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Additional Information

The additional information on pages 37 through 40 is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the undetlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. Such information has been subjected 1o the audiung procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedares, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financil statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with audiing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is [aiely stated, in all
material respects, in relasion to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Geeernment Awditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 23, 2015 on our
consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of thar
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, That report is an integral past of an audit performed in accordance with Gozermmeont
Auwdliting Standards in considering the Authority’s internal conteol over (inancial reporting and compliance.

June 25, 2015
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Management ceetifies that, based on our knowledge, the information provided therein is accurate, correct and docs
not contain any vatrae statement of matezial fact; does not emit any matedal fact, which, if omitted, would cause the
financial statements o be misleading in light of the circumstances under which such statements are made; and fairly
presents in all malerial respects the financial condition and results of operatons of the Audiority as of, and for, the
periods presented i the financial statements.

NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Kimberey A, Minkel John T. Cox Patrick . Dahon
Hxecutive Director Clucf Financial Officer Director of Internal Audit and
Corporate Compliance

June 25, 2015
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The management of the Niagara Fronticr Transporiation Authorty (the Authority) is responsible (or establishing and
maintaining adequate internal controls and procedures over financial reporting. The Niagara Frontier Transportation
Authority’s internal control system is designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Aothorily’s management and
Board of Commissioners regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements.

Allinteroal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect 1o financial statement prepazation and
presentation. Further, because of changes in conditions, internal control effectiveness may vary over time.

The Aunthornity’s management assessed the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reposting as
of March 31, 2015. Tn making this asscssment, it vsed the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOY in Inernal Conivel — Intograted Framework.  Based on our
assessment we believe that, as of March 31, 2015, the Authority’s internal controls over financial reporting are
effective based on those criteria.

The Authority’s independent auditor, Lumsden & McCormick, LLP, bas issued a report on our assessment of the
Authority’s iniernal control over financial reporting,

NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTITORITY

Kimberey A. Minkel John T Cox Patnick ). Dalton
Executive Dircclor Clief Financial Officer Director of Internal Audit and
Corporate Compliance

June 25, 2015
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Faded March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013
(Unaudited)

This management’s discussion and amlym (MIX&A) of the Niagara Jirontier Transportation Authority (the Authorily)
provides an introduction and overview to the financial statements of the Authority for the fiscal years ended March 31,
2015, 2014 and 2013, Following this MD&A are the financial statements of the Authority, together with the notes
thereto, which are essential to « [ull understanding of the data contained in the financial statements.

The financial statements of the Authority are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounung which requires that revenues are recorded when carned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, not when the related cash receipr or dishursement oceurs.

The financial statemnents of the Authority encompass the activity of the NFTA, which includes aviation operations and
propertly management, and Niagara Frontier Transit Metro System, Inc. (Metro), a blended component wait of the
Authority, which primarily provides surface transportation.

QOverview of the Financial Statements

"T'his discussion and analysis Is intended to serve as an ntwoduction 1o the Authority’s financial statements. The Authorin’s
financial statements consist of:

& Balance Sheets
e Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

& Statements of Cash Flows

Balance Sheets present information on the Authority’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources, with the differences reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net POSitIon may
serve as a useful ndicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating,

Statements of Revenucs, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report the operatng and non- -OpLraling revenues
and expenses of the r'\u[homy The difference, change in net position before C'xplml contributions, combined with capital
contributions and special item - property disposition, determines the change in net pObiliUn for the fiscal year. That
change, combined with the previous year'’s net position total, reconciles (o the net position rotal at the end of this fiscal
year.

Statements of Cash Flows report cash activities for the fiseal year J:uﬁulting_, {ram operalting activities, non-capital
financing activities, capital and related financing activities, and investing activities. The sier result of these activities, added
to the beginning of the year cash and cash equivalents balance, reconciles to the to1al cash and cash equivalents balance at
the end of the fiscal year.

T'he nores to the financial statements [urther explain certain information 1 the financial statements and provide more
derailed dama. The statements are followed by additional information thar provides mformation related to NIFTA and
Metro,

Comm. 16M-7
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Fot the Years Eaded March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013

{Unaudited)
Summary of Financial Highlights
Summarized Balance Sheets
March 31
(In thousands)
2015 2014 2013
Current assets 3 68,473 § 61,020 Y 37814
Restricted assets 45,950 46,912 45,003
Bond insurance costs, net 094 1,543 1,683
Capital assels, net 624,293 (673,651 704,338
Total assets h 739,410 3 783,126 $ 808,838
Current habilities $ 43,602 $ 52,777 3 57.680
Long-term liabilities 297,390 290,485 285,696
Total liabilities 340,992 343,262 343,376
Net position:
Net mvestment in capital assets 484,013 519,075 533,939
Restricted 39,731 40,082 38,951
Unrestricted (125,326) (119,893) (107,428)
Total net position 398,418 439,864 465,462
Total] labilities and net position b 739,410 $ 783,126 b 308,838

Wet Position

‘The changes in total net position scrve over time as a useful indicator of the Authority’s financial position.

17
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

{A Component Unit of the State of New York)
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013
{Unaudsed)

March 31, 2015 vs. Match 31, 2014

As a result of the Authority’s fiscal 2015 activities, March 31, 2015 net position decreased $41.4 million, or 9.4%, from
March 31, 2014, Resuricted net assets consist primarily of cash and investments restricted in accordance with bonding
requirements or assets whose usc is limited to specific purposes in accordance with various agreements. Net investnent
in capital assets represents the Authority’s net capital assets, offset by any debt ourstanding used to finance the capital
assel purchases.

©

Current asscts increased $7.5 million from March 31, 2014 o March 31, 2015, primazily due to a $21.3 million increase
in unrestricted cash held by the Aurhorty, offset by 2 $13.7 million decrease in grants receivable. Grans receivable
thacruate based on the timing of requests and the subscequent receipt of funds.

Current liabilities decreased $9.2 million, or 17.4%, atributable to a lower current postion of long-tesm debt as a loan.
1o fund construction of the Niagara Falls Inteenational Airport (NFIA) rerminal matured in 2013, lack of boat harbor
deferred revenues due to transfer of the propecty to New York State, and Jower Metro deferred token and pass
revenues.

Total abilitics temained relatively consisteat from March 31, 2014 to March 31, 2015 s debt decreases totaling $13.7
million were offset by increases in other postemployment benefits liabifities totling $12.9 million.

As more fully described below, the Authority issued $65.3 million Series 2014A and $12.4 Series B Aldrport revenue
bonds to refund outstanding Series 1999A and 19998 and 1998 bonds totaling $88.8 million.

Cureent year depreciation and asset disposals exceeded capital asset additions by $49.4 miflion in fiscal 2015, while
related debt decreased $13.7 million, resulting in 4 decrease in net capital assets of $35.7 million at March 31, 2015
compared to March 31, 2014, During fiscal 2015, the Anthority ransferred waterfront propesty, improvements and
equipment resulting in a special item — property disposition of $12.9 million on the statements of revenues, cxpenscs
and changes in net position,

Nert unrestricted position is negative $125.3 million and negative $119.9 million a1 March 31, 2015 and 2034, primacily
resudting from the accrual of postemployment benefirs other than pensions required by GASB Statemeni Neo. 45,

Mareh 31, 2014 vs, Mazch 31, 2013

As aresult of the Awthority’s fiscal 2014 activities, the Authority’s net position decreased $25.6 million, or 5.53%, from
March 31, 2013 to March 31, 2014

-]

Current assets increased 3.2 million, or 5.5%, duc 1o an increase in government grants receivable related to additional
Preventive Maintenance (PM) funds for Metro, partially offset by higher operaing cash outflows.

Net investment in  capital assets decreased $14.3 million, or 2.7%, primarily due o the continued depreciation of
exisling assets, partially offset by the capiralized costs in the current year primarily related o the railear rebuild project,
reack bed replacement and Buffalo Niagara International Airport (BNTA) Long-T'erm Lot B expansion and repayment
of $10.3 million related long-term debr,

Current Liabilities decreased $4.9 million, or 8.5%, atibutable 1o the payoff of rthe $5.5 million line of ceedit drawn
2012 For the anticipated receipt of New York State dedicared ransit funds.

Comm. 16M-7
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

{A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FPor the Years Fnded March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013

{Unaudited)

Summary of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Years ended March 31

(In thousands)

2015 2014 2013
O perating revenues:
Fares $ 37,398 $ 36,714 $ 36,489
Concessions and commissions 28,509 29,035 30,203
Rental mcome 16,412 15,9706 14,877
Airport fees and services 17,643 16,874 16,137
Other operating revenucs 6,564 6,741 7,153
Total operating revenues 106,526 105,340 104,859
Operating expenses: '
Salaries and employee benefits 133,950 132,944 130,646
Other postemployment benefits 12,988 14,098 15,050
Depreciation 54,510 53,021 56,274
Maintenance amd repairs 19,884 18,587 16,420
Transit fucl and power 6,764 8,106 8,219
Uilities 5,285 6,358 5,101
lusurance and mpuries 4,388 4202 4,374
Other operating expensces 14,547 14,441 14,334
Total operating expenses 252 316 251,847 250,418
Operating loss {145,7903 (146,507 (145,559)
Non-operating revenues, net 90,928 07,199 88,280
Change in ner postion before capital
contributions and special item {45,862) (49,308 (57,279
Capital contuibutions 17,397 23,710 48,410
Special item - property disposition (12,981) -
Change in net posidon (41,446 (25,598} (8,800
Ner position, beginning of year 439,864 405 462 47433
Net position, end of year g 398418 S 439 864 S 465,462

19
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Euded March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013
{(Unaudited)

March 31, 2015 vs, March 31, 2014

The Authority ended 2015 with total net position of $398.4 million compared to $43%.9 in 2014,

36,504

Sources of Revenue for FYE 2013

$17,643

w Airporl fees and services

@ Fares

# Rental income

' Other operating revenues

g Concessions and commissions
$37,398

$16,412

Significant items affecting the revenues, expenses and changes in net position are as follows:

Authonty-wide operating revenues inereased $1.2 million, or 1.1%, from $105.3 million 1o $106.5 million.

o Meiro operating revenues increased 1.9% from $37.5 million to $38.2 million due to the following:

C

Fares were §0.7 million, or 1.9%, higher than 2014 primarily due to increased school passenger revenuc
and higher ridership,

o NFTA operating revenues increased 0.7%, from $67.9 million to $68.4 million duc to the following:

&}

Concessions and commissions were $0.5 million, or 1.8%, lower than 2014 due to decreased BNIA
parking lot/ramp zevenue and lower BNIA auto rental revenue, partially offset by higher NFIA parking
lot revenue.

Reatal income increased $0.4 million, or 2.7%, as a result of higher BNIA 1erminal rentzl compensatory
billings with ncreased texminal direct and indirect costs and lower PFC funds applied against delt
service. Partially offsetedng the BNIA variance was lower rents as a result of the expiration of a lease with
a major tenant.

Anrport fees and services are $0.8 million, or 4.6%, higher than 2014 as increased BNIA direct landing
arca expenses resulted in higher compensatory aidine billings, while increased general aviation, air cargo
and rerminal ramp fees also contrbuted to the varance,

v
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£54,510

§19,884

56,704

12,988

NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013
{Unaudited)

Expenses for FYE 2015

§133,950

\

# Salaries and benefits

& {Hlwer

& Insurance and injurics

& Other postemployment beneflis
& Transit fuel and power
 Maintenance and repairs

# [Depreciation

o filities

$14,547

Operating expenses increased 0.2% from $251.8 million o $252.3 million,

]

Metro operating expenses increased $2.6 million, or 1.6% from $166.4 million to $169.0 million due 10 the following:

O

Q

Salaries and employee benefits decreased $0.4 million, or 0.4%.  Higher overtime, health insurance and
other niscelfaneous fringe benefit costs were offset by decreases in accrued compensated absences.

2015 ncludes $10.9 million of postemployment health insurance costs, a decrease of $0.7 million, or 6%.

Depreciation expense, which varies from vear to year based on the timing ol assct purchases and
estimated useful lives, increased $3.7 million, or 14.8%, in fiscal 2015.

Maintenance and repairs increased $1.2 nullion, or 15.4%, as higher revenue vehicle maincenance costs
due o aging parts and expired warranties wete pattially offser by lower facility expenses and timing of gail
prinding costs.

Transit fuel and power costs declined $1.3 million, or 16.6%, duc to lower dicsel, pasoline and rail
traction costs.

Utilities decreased $0.4 million, or 17.5%, due to lower electric and gas raws.

Insurance and injuries increased $0.3 million, or 8.0%, due to highes reserve qplnoprmtious as a result of
new and pending litigated clainis in 2015, partally offset by lower insusance prenriums.

Vi
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

(A Componcat Unit of the State of New York)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Fanded March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013
(Unaacited)

@  NFTA operating expenses decreased 32.1 million, or 2.5%, from $85.4 million o $83.3 million due to the following:

o Depreciation expense, which varies from year to year based on the timing of asset purchases and
estimated useful lives, decreased $2.2 million, or %,

o Tliscal year 2015 includes $2.0 million m postemployment health insurance costs, a decrease of $0.4
million from fiscal year 2014,

o Udlities decreased $0.7 million, or 16.6%, due to lower electric and ¢ gas rales.

The ner resuli of the above was an operatng loss of $145.8 milhon in fiscal 2015, a decrease of 8.7 million, or .5% from
$146.5 million in fiscal 2014,

Net non-operating revenues for fiscal 2015 mncreased $2.7 million comp'uul to fiscal 204, from $97.2 millicn o 399.9
million, as a $4.7 mlion increase in operating assistance and decreases in interest and Alrpoert noise abatement totaling $4.5
million were offset by an unfavorable adjustment of $2.5 million related to the change in the value of derivative
mseroments and $2.8 matlion included in other non-operating expenses related o bond refinancing.

Capiral contributions decreased 26.6% from $23.7 milfion in 2014 o $17.4 million in fscal 2015 primarily due to lower
grant funds related to decreased drawdowns of FT'A, FAA, NYSDOT and other miscellancous grants as fiscal 2015
incurred lower capital project expenses, Additonally, fiscal 204 included the completion of the BNEA Long-Term Lot 13
exXpansion project.

Pursuant 1o an agreement dated Aprl 8, 2014 between the Authority, Ere Canal Hatbor Development Corporation
(ECHDC) and New York State Urban Development Corporation, the Authority transforred approximately 200 acres of
propesty along the Lake Erie shoreline m the City of Buffalo to ECHDC, for §2 and also entered into an operations and
mainienance agreement with the State of New York Office of Parks, Recreation, and Historic Preservation to operate the
area as a NY State park. The Authority continued to operate the property, which includes a 1,000 slip boat marina, for the
benefit of TCHIDC untdl November 15, 2014, € apltah/gd A(.(]L}J'-.[Llc)n costs with a net book value of $13.0 million were
written off in fiscal 2015 and recorded as a special item io the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net
posirion

Vit
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHCGRITY
{A Component Unit of the Stare of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Tfor the Years [inded March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013
(Unaudited)

Summary of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

March 31, 2014 vs. March 31, 2013

Sources of Revenue for FYE 2014

$29,035

$i6,874

1’ Airport fees and services
& Fares

@ Rental income

1 Other operating revenues

$6,741 & Concessions and commissions

$36,714
515,970

Sigaificant items affecting the revennes, expenses and changes in net posidon ate as follows:

Authority-wide operating revenues increased 0.4% from $104.9 million to $105.3 million.

o Metro operating revenues increased 0.8% from $37.2 million to $37.5 million primarily due to increased university
pass program revenue, while core ridership rematned at similar levels.

e NITA operating revenues incseased 0.3%, from $67.7 million to $67.9 million due to the following:

o Concessions and commissions are $1.2 mlhion lower than 2013 due to decreased BNTA parking lot/ramp
tevenue and lower BNIA auto rental revenue resulting from a decreased negotiated mibifum guarantee
witl: the aute rental companies,

o Rental income increased $1.1 million as a result of higher BNIA airhine overnight parking and gate usc
fees and full year impact of a new lease agreement with auto rental companies at BNTA which resulted in
higher fixed rental billings.

o Auport fees and services are §0.7 millien higher than 2013 as increased BNLA dieet landmg azen
expenses, hond debr service costs and higher NFLA net deficit, are factored inro signatary airtine billings.
The BNTA signatory airlines, as part of the landing fee rate, fund 50% of NFIA’s net defic, alter capital
needs.
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)
Management’s Discussion and Analysts

Hor the Years Hnded March 31, 2015, 2044, and 2013
{Unaudited)

Expenses for FYE 2014

$53,021
$6,358

B Salaries and benefits

# Other

$18,387

58,106 # Insurance and injurics

8 Other postemployment benefits
§14,008 # Transit fucl and power
IRIOR R . 2 Maintenance and repairs
$4,202 D DT ¢ Depreciation

i Utilities

$14,44)

$132,944

Operating expenses increased §1.4 million from $250.4 million to $251.8 million, or 0.6%.
®  Mero operating expenses decreased 0.6% (rom $167.5 million to $166.4 millien due to the following:

©  Salaties and employee benefits increased $1.3 milion, or 1.4%, as a result of higher mnstruction labor,
student labor, snowplowing labor, overtime and health insurance costs, partially offset by lower workers’
compensation and pension costs,

o Depreciation expense, which varies from year to year based on the tming of asset purchases and
estimated useful lives, decreased $4.7 million in fiscal 2014,

o Mamtenance and repairs increased $1.5 million, or 24.0%, as higher revenue and non -revenue velicle
maintenance, environmeatal and facility costs coneributed to the vadance.

o Utilities increased $0.5 million, or 28.6%, as the extraordinasily hagsh winter contributed to higher electric
and gas billings.
o NFTA operatng expenses increased $2.5 million [rom $82.9 million to $85.4 million due to the following;:

o Salaries and employee benefits inereased $1.4 million as a result of union contractual and non-represented
employee increases, higher workers” compensation costs and BNJA overtime, offset by lower health
insurance, pension costs and police overtme,

©  Depreciaton expense, which varies from year 10 year based on the timing of asset purchases and
eatimated useful lives, increased $1.5 million in fiscal 2014,
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
A\ Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013
{(Unaudited)

o Maintenance and repairs increased $0.7 million, or 6.8%, due to higher BNIA snowplowing, avtomotive
(diesel fuel and supplies) and eovironmental costs, partially offset by decreased BNIA baggage
maintenance costs as pegotiations with a new supply company resulted in significant savings.

o Uudlitics increased $0.6 mullion as the extraordinarily harsh winter contributed to higher electric and gas
billings at all business centers.

0 Other operating expenses increased $0.6 million due 0 the partial reversal of 2013 BNIA bad debt
expense, and higher BNIA temporary help, parking management costs and advertising expenses. Higher
professional services/consultant costs, fujvmnsmgJ rent and general office expenses fur administrative
support departments also contributed to the vasiance.

The net result of the above was an operating loss increase of 0.7% from $145.6 million in 2013 10 $146.5 million in 2014,

Net non-operating revenucs for fiscal 2014 increased $8.9 million, from $88.3 million to $97.2 million, compazed o fiscal
2013 primarily due to an increase in operating assistance of §3.1 million and a favorable adjustment of $2.0 million related
to the change in value of derivative instruments.

Capital contributions decreased 51.0% {rom $48.4 million in 2013 to $23.7 million in 2014 primarily due to lower grant
funds related to decreased drawdowns of FI'A, FAA, NYSDOT and other miscellaneous grants as 2013 incladed major
ramway work at NI'TA and the purchase of thitteen hybeid buses,

Capital Assets

Net capital assers total $624.3 million, $673.7 million and $704.3 million at March 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
representing a decrease of 73% m fiscal 2015 and 4.3% i [scal 2014, as deprecianon and  dispositivns continue fo
outpace annual investment i capital.  The Authority uses its capital asscts primarily to provide services to the public.
Signiftcant compenents of capital assets include a Light Rait Rapid Teansit (LRRT) system and BNIA.

Norewarthy capiral asset additions and disposals for fiscal year 2015 were:

e NFIA addiions included $2.5 mullion i energy saving mprovernents, as well as BNIA and NFIA airport
improvements totaling $3.4 million. As deseribed previously, waterfront property with a ner asser value of $13.0
million was wansferred 1o RCHIDC in 2015,

e Meto additions included $3 2 mitlion for the ongolag mid-life railcar rebuild project, $2.4 million and $0.6 million for
the rail track foundation (500 block of Main Street) project and the raill wain control carborne system project,
respectively. Also, fully depreciated rail stanon stractures and rail fasteners were disposed in 2015
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013
{Unaudired)

Noteworthy capital asset additions and disposals for fiscal vear 2014 were:

¢ NFTA additions inchrded §3.3 million and $1.2 million for the BNIA Long-Term Lot B Hxpansion and BNIA
runway 5/23 and 14/32 intersection project, respectively. Also, NIFIA runway L01./28R rehabilitation from 2003 was
disposed in 2014 as a result of Lhe ranway mill and overlay project of 2013.

o Metro additions included $2.6 million for the ongoing mid-life railcar rebuild project, $2.2 million and $2.0 million for

rail track bed replacement (600 block of Main Street) and the purchase of four trolley buses, respectively.  Also, rail
station stosgctuees and nineleen life-expired small transic buses were disposed in 2014,

Debt Administration

March 31, 2015 vs, March 31, 2014

To capitalize on historically low interest rates, during fiscal 2015 the Authority issued $65.3 million Scries 2014A and §12.4
million Series 20148 Airport Revenue Bonds ar a premium of $9.3 miltion to refund outstanding Series 1999A, 19998,
and 1998 bonds totaling $88.8 million. The ceconomic gain on the refunding, caleelated as the difference between the
present vahies of the debt service payments on the old and new deby, is $14.8 million.

At March 31, 2013, the Authority had §140.3 million of outstanding debt.  This represents a $13.7 million, or 8.9%,
decrease from 2014 duc to continued debt service payments and the aforementioned refunding:

March 31, 2014 vs. March 31, 2013

At March 31, 2014, the Authority had $154.0 million of ourstanding debt. This represents a $16.4 million, or 9.6%,
decrease from 2013, Contnued debi service payments related to BNIA and NFIA terminal construcdon, as well as
repaymient of the §5.5 mitlion line of credit drawn 1n 2012 for the anticipated receipt of New York State dedicated transit
funds, contributed to the decrease.
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

[or the Yerrs Ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013
{Unaudited)

OPERATIONS, ACCOMPLISHMENTS, AND OUTLOOK FOR THE AUTHORITY

Surface Transportation

Metro bus and rail is the Authority’s largest strategic business unit with over 1,108 employees, It is also the second largest
transit provider in New York State, behind the Metropolitan Transportation Authornty in New Yock City, and the only
upstate transportation. authority to operate a light il system. It transports approxmately 30 million passengers a year
over 1,575 square miles.

Based on a calendar vear 2012 On Board Study conducted by the Greater Buffalo-Niagara Regional Transportation
Counell, the majority of the Authority’s wansit riders are wansit dependent.  Eighty-two percent of fders do not have
access 1o a vehicle and 35 percent of riders do not have valid drivers’ licenses. Furthermore, 14 percent of ridess surveyed
in the region were unemployed. The survey found that the NIFTA Surface Transportation System primarily serves people
with lower incomes. On average 90% of riders were from houscholds with an annual income of less than $50,000 an
that 37% of riders were frem houscholds making tess than $10,000 annually. '

Approximately 26% of Metro’s revenues are derived from fare collection and advertising, while 74% are from outside
operating and capital assistance. New York State is the Authority’s largest investor providing 47% of operating and capital
assistance while 34% comes from local sources and 19% from the federal government. Any changes in these funding
sources can have a significant Impact on Autheority operations and service.

As a resull, as we prepared the update o the five year capital and operating plan for FYE 2016 - 2020, it remained clear
that the Authority, specifically the Surface Transportation Division, will need approximately $10 - $17 million a year in
additional net income in order to be sustainable without dramatically impaciing operations and/or our [are structure.

In an analysis of opportunities, we noted that if the NFTA were to be allocated State Operating Assistance based on the
federal formula methodology. the Authority would be receiving approximately $9 million more 2 year. Federal Funding
takes into consideration population, population density, bus revenue vehicle miles, bus passenger miles, fixed guideway
revenue vehicle miles, and fixed guideway route miles.

Having noted that, we also recognize that the federal, state and local government sectors continue to face fiscal challenpes
and that new funding sources need to be idendfied for public transpotttion; our goal is to coatinue to work towards
diversifying and growing the funding sources to help sustain public transportation for all upstate New York.

As part of our Bluepsing for the Future, in addition ro stabilizing goverrunent assistance, our strategic plans concentrate on
cost control, increasing organizational liquidity, echnological improvements, operational changes sueh as implementation
ol a new fare box collection system, providing more flexible fare strucruees, inproving service standards, continuing o
engage the public with the newly established Citizens Advisory Commitice for Public ‘Transportation, developing our
workforce, and growing locally generated revenue through public-povate  partaceships such as  transit-oricnted
development,

A Transit Intelligent Transportation System (I'08) Strategic plan has been drafied thar will gwide the tmplementation of

I'TS projects for the next 2 - 4 vears,

In fiscal 2036, the NIFTA will continue work on several key mnovative projects that will positvely unpact public

transportation i the region and spur economic development.  The Niagara Street Corridor Project will create a

comprehensive urban transit corridor in the City of Buffale that will improve NIFUA bus service, advance the FTA’s
X
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

{A Component Unit of the State of New York)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013
{Unaundited}

livabihty standards and act as a model for uture corridors in the NETA serviee area and throughout the United States,
The project, which goes from Niagara Square in downtown Buffale to Niagara and Ontario Streets, focuses on a high-
demand uwrban transit comidor which presents real opportunity for neighbothood revitalization, transit-oriented
development, and mnproved livablity for local citzens.  Tinal pzoducrs of the project will include five new 40-foot
cc)mprcbscd natural gas (C \5(1) buses, a compact uug)hborhood transit center and park-and-rde with bus lmldmg spaces
near prime access peints for six bus routes, traffic signal priotitization equipment to enhance bus flow and timing, and
new bus shelters with solar panels and aext bus noufication technology. The anticipated completion is fiscat 2016.

NFTA is also continuing an alternatives study for the Amherst-Buffalo Corridor, which includes NFFA/Metro’s highest
ridership levels, to ensure recent economic development in the region has adequate infrastructure 10 addeess increased
transportation oeeds. The Amherst-Baffalo Corridor would connect the current NETA Light Rail System in Buoffalo o
the State University of New York ar Buffalo’s (UB) 1,100 acre North Campus in Amberst. This analysis is viewed as the
first step for NFTA to make informed decisions about providing wansit options for a growing ridership and could lead to
a project (o spur cconomic and transit-onented development, ‘

In addition, NFTA is engaged in the One Region Forward initiative. (ne Region Forward is a broad-based, collaborative
effort to promote more sustamable forms of development in Frie and Ningara counties (the Buffalo Niagara Region) in
land use, teansportation, housing, energy and climate, access to food, and more. The One Region Forward Steering
Committee which consists of Metropolitan Planning Organization members and strategic private-sectos pareners adopted
the Regional Plan for Sustainable Development in December 2014, The Steering Committee and subeommittees have
joindy applied for grants and continue to coordinate work o improve mobility, build more efficient land use patterns,
strengthen existing infrastruerare, and grow the economy.

Looking at infrastructure, NITLA s in the process of constructing a new CNG fueling station and modifying the adjacent
Frontier Bus Garage to allow for storage and maintenance of new CNG-fueled vehicles, The CNG [ueling station will be
available for use lage 2015/ eatly 2016. The NFTA. will conunission 20 new CNG-fueled 40- foot transit buses and 10 new
paratsansit vehicles by eady 2016 with plans to purchase dozens more over the next 4 to 5 years. CNG-fueled vehicles
will lower greenhouse gas emissions of the fleer and save millions in Fuel costs over the bfe of the vehicles. The Light
Railear Mid-life Rebuild project, where we aze rehabilitadng all 27 of our railears that have been in service for over 25
years, and extends the fife of the fleet for another 20 years, continues 1o progress.  These unprovements are being
accomplished in New York State, adding to the State’s ceonomic development.

Comm. 16M-7

o8 Page 29 of 94



NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUFHORITY
(4 Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Years Ended March 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013
{Unaudited)

Aviation

BNIA, the Authority’s second lacgest stategic business unit, serves over 5 million passengers, marking its cighth straight
vear of that level of passengers, a milestone that was not predicted vntil 2020. To accommodate growth, BNIA’s T ong-
Term Lot B was recently expaoded 1o accommodate an additional 988 cars.

BNIA also continues fo progress on the $56.8 million noise mitigation projeers that will continue for the next year. These
projects are fully funded by the FAA, New York State and Passenger Facility Charges.

Located just five miles from Niagara Falls, the Niagara Falls Taternational Airport (NFIA) has been a catalyst for
cconomic development. Since the completion of the new terminal building in 2009, the number of enplancments has
growa significantly, This bas resulted in a 9.6% increase of passengers from fiscal 2044, as NFIA hit the 0.22 million Jevel
of annual passengers for the fist time in fiscal 2015, Qverall, the aviation division continues o work on ways (0 increase
revenues and attract inore air service to NELA.

The recently completed master plan document identifies the infrastructure and financing necessary 1o meet the increased
operadonal demands over the next 20 years at NFIA. In addition, the project buile a Geographic Informaton System
(GIS) for arport projects and created a Dynamic Analysts Tool that models the impact of changing economic conditions
on enplanements and infrastructure needs. The goal for the project is to have airport development strike a balance
between social, economic and environmental needs for the surrounding community. Addidonally, an overall aviation
strategic plan will be completed thar considers the growth and positioning of both BNIA and NFIA. This will help shape
the direction of the aviation system as 4 whole.

Property Development

The property development division serves as the Authority-wide provider of real estate services, approximately 1,800 acres
of property throughout Erie and Niagara counties and 15 responsible for the Authority’s non-public transportation assets,
including (through November 2014) the NFTA Boat Flarbor, the largest reereational boat harbor in New York State with
over 1,000 slips,

As previously indicated, i fiscal 2015, certain waterfront property owned by the Authority, including the boat harbor, was
rransferred to KCHDC. Tris the disection of the Board of Commissioners to divest properties that are not in concert with
the Authority’s mission of providing and supporting transportation.

CONTACT FOR AUTHORITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This report is designed to provide a general overview of the finances of the Authonty for interested partics. Questions
concerning any information within this veport or requests for additional information should be addressed to John T Cox,
Chief financial Officer, 181 Ellicatt Street, Buffalo, New York 14203,

xiv
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

March 31, 2015 2014
Asscts
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 46,449 3% 25,104
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubt{u] accounts
of 559 and $95 1n 2015 and 2014 5,693 6,155
Grants reccivable 11,416 25,085
Marcrials and supplies inventory 4,541 4,159
Prepaid expenses and other 374 517
68,473 61,020
Restricted assers:
Cash and cash equivalents 45,925 46,887
Tavestments 25 25
45,950 46,912
Prepaid bood insurance 694 1,543
Capital assets, net (Note 4) 624,293 (73,651
670,937 722,106
Total asscts $ 739410 § 783,126
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt 3 8,169 3 12,875
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,460 29,913
Customer depostts 754 3,159
Other liabilities 6,219 6,830
43,602 52,777
Noncurrent liabilities:
Tialr value of swap agreements 5,251 5,043
Long-term delst 132,111 141,101
Other postemployment benefits 117,134 104,146
Payable to NYS Retwrement 7,070 6,068
Estimated hability for scif-insured claims 35,824 34,127
297,390 290,485
Total liabilities 340,992 343,202
Net positien
Net investment in capiral assers 484,013 519,675
Resteieted 39,731 40,082
Insestncted (125,326) (119,893
Total net position 398,418 439,864
Total Habilities and net position & 739410 3 783,126

.S‘r.'e,' {Jl'n’.‘ﬁf)i]?ri{i')'.‘l{g HOLEN.

30

Comm. 16M-7
Page 31 of 94



NTAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTTIORITY

{A Component Unit of the State of New YVork)

oy the years ended March 31, 2015 2014
Operating revenues:
Fares $ 37,398 S 36,714
Concessions and commissions 28,509 29,035
Rental income 16,412 15,976
Airport fees and services 17,643 16,874
Tenanl reimbursements 1,632 1,651
Boat harbor fees 1,255 1,215
Other operating revenues 3,677 3,875
Total operating revenues 106,526 105,34()
Operating expenses:
Salarics and employee benefus 133,950 132,944
Other postemployment benefits 12,988 14,198
Depreciation 54,510 33,021
Maintenance and repairs 19,884 18,587
Transit fuel and power 6,764 3,106
Unlites 5,285 6,338
Insurance and injudes 4,388 4,202
Other 14,547 1d 441
Total operating expenses 252,316 251,847
Operating loss (145,790} (146,507)
Non-operating revenues {expenses):
Operating assistance 105,871 101,190
Passenger factlity charges 9,518 10,176
Change in fair value of swap agreements {208) 2,289
[nterest expense, ncl (5,843) (7,782)
Alrport notse abatement (4,693) (7,297)
Other non-operating expense, net 4,717y (1,383)
Total non-opetating net revenues (expenses) 99,928 97,199

Change in net position before capital

contributions and special item ' (45,862} (49,308)
Capital contobulions 17,397 23,710
Special tem - property disposition (12,981) -
Change in net position (41,446) {25,598)
Net position, beginning of year 439,864 465,402
Net position, end of year $ 398418 § 439,864

5

See arcompanying notes.
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(:\ Component Unit of the State of New Yark)

For the years ended March 38, ' 2015 2014
Operating activities:
Cash collected from customers $ 164,584 § 105,168
Cash paid for employee wages and benelits (133,757} (120,464)
Cash paid 10 veadors and suppliers (47,567 (58.817)
Cash paid for insurance and injuries (2,691} (2,300)
Net operating activities (79,431) (76,418)
Non-capital financing activities:
Operating assistance 105,871 101,190
Capital and related financing activities:
Repayments of long-term debr (101,718} (18,938)
Proceeds from issuance of kong- term delx 87,105 2,545
Other habilidcs 315 314
Interest paid (5,084) (7,938)
Mortgage recording tax (926) 464
Capital grants and contmbutions 31,066 18,473
Additions 1o capitd assets (18,025) (22,453)
Construction retainages, nel 246 @B
Praceeds from sale of capital assets 69 166
Passenger factity charges 9,518 10,176
Alrpost noise abatement {4,693) (7,291)
Qther (4,045) (1,293
MNet capital and related financing activities {6,172) (26,115)
Investing activities:
interest incorme 115 156
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 20,383 {1,187)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of vear 71,991 73,178
Cash and cash cquivalents, end of year % 92,374 § 71,991

Recoaciliation 1o Balance Sheerts
Cash and cash equivalents:

Unresticted $ 46,449 S 25,104
Restricted 45,925 46,887
Toral cash and cash equivalenrs % 92,374 S 71,991

Reconeiliation of eperating loss to net cash used 1n operating activites:
Operating loss 3 (145,790) B (i46,507)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss 1o net cash flows
from opesating activities:

Deprecation 54,510 53,021
Ohther posterapleyment benefis, net 12,988 14,098
Changes i assets and labilines:
Receivables 462 (728)
Aaterials and supplies inventory (382) {(188)
Prepaid expenses and other 143 (149
Accounts payable and ncerued expenses (1,656) 136
Customer depasits (2,405) 538
Estmarted liability for self-insured claims 1,697 1,992
Pavable to NY'S Reticement 1,002 1,349
Net cash used lor operaling activities 5 (79,431 S (76,418}

N20 tBmbaaYiRg Notes.
i’
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
Financial Reporting Entivy

‘The Niagarz T'rontier Transportation Aathotity {the Authority) was created by an Act of the New York State
Legislature i 1967 to promote the developmens and improvement of transportation and related services
within the Niagara Froatier tragsportation district. The Niagara Frontier Transit Metro System, Inc. (Metro)
was created as part of the Authority in 1974 w provide mass transportation services to the Niagara Frontice.
Although Metro is a separate legal entity, the Authority maintains financial and governance responsibility over
its operations,

‘The Authority, inclading Metro, is governed by a 13 member Board of Commissioners (the Board) appointed
by the Governor of New York State (the State), with the consent of the New York State Senate. The Board
governs and sets policy for the Authority. The Executive Director, subject to policy direction and delegation
from the Board, 15 responsible for all activities of the Authority.

As a multi-modal rransportation authotity, the Authority operates 2 number of tansportation related business
centers including aviation, surface transportation and property management. The Authosity’s charter requires
that it operate under an approved annual balanced consolidated budger. Therefore, its basic mode of
operations calls for transfers, if necessary, within business centers that produce a surplus to those chat incur a
deficic.

The Authority follows the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Seatement
No. 63, The Finaucial Reporting Lntity: Qumibus — an Amendment of GASB Statements No, 14 and No. 34, as well as
GASB Statement No. 39, Defermining Whether Certain Orpanisations are Component Units — An Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 14, and GASB Statement No. 14, The Finansial Reporting Enfify, which provide guidance to
determine whether an affiliated organizarion is considered a component unit of a tinancial reporting cagty.
Based on its financial and governance responsibility for Metro, the Authorily reports Metro as a blended
component unit. The Authority is included in the financial statements of the State as an enterprise fund.
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
{AA Component Uit of the State of New York)

Notes 1o Financial Stateinents
Narch 31, 2015 and 2014
(2)  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

{a)  Basis of Presentation and Measurement Focus

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles as applied to governmental units. The GASB s the accepred standard-sciting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles,  The Authosig’s
financial statement presentation is prepared in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement
No. 20, Acconpting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Punds and Other Gowernmental ntities Thar Use
Proprictary Fand AAcconnting, amended by the provisions of GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of
Acconnting and Viwancial Reporting Guidance Cowtained in Pro-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICEA
Pronosneenrent, This statement codilies all soutces of accounting principles generally accepted i the
nited States of America into the GASB’s authoritative literature.

The Authority reports as a special purpose government engaged in business-lype activities, as defined by
GASB Statement No. 34, Basie Finansial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Anebyis - for State and
Lacal Goversmrenls, using the economic resoucces measurement focus and the accread basis of accounting,
Al assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, ner position,
revenucs, and expenses are accounted for through a single enterprise fund with revenues recorded wlhen
earned and expenses recorded at the time liabilities age incurred. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been sausfied.

The Authorily’s policy (or defining operating activities in the statements of revenues, expenses and
changes 1 net pos‘ili(m are those that generally result from exchqng}c transactions such as payments
received for services and payments made to purcha:c goods and services, Certain other transactions are
reported ag non-operating activites,

Authority Opetations
The Authority operates the following three strategic business centers:
Aviation

The Authority ovperates the Buffalo Niagara loternauonsl Asport (BNIA) and the Niagara Falls
International Afrport (NFTAY. BNIA 1s Western New York’s primary passenger and cargo airport, while
NEFIA dontinues to sceve as a general aviaton airport with an cisiergingg s¢hedhiled chattér business.
NELA, shared with a2 military base, also serves as the Iederal Aviaton Adminstrauon (FAA) reliever
airport for BNLA

Property Management

The property management department manages real estate owned by the Authority, including certain
waterfront property, rail rights of way, and non-public transportation assets such as industeal warchouse
distribution and associated office space for lease.
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(h)

()

(d)

NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORILY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Naotes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014

Surface Transportation

Metro Operations
Metro provides the following operations:

o MetroLink, a fixed route scheduled service providing community access to jobs and a pararcansi
program for disabled persons.

o A seasonal/rourisi-oriented service operating replica trolley vehicles over a fixed loop route in the
City of Niagara [alls.

e A light rail system between downtown Boffalo and the State University of New York at Buffalo,

The majority of Metro operations employees are members of the Amalgamated Transit Union Local
1342 (ATU).  Tive other labor unions represent a small percentage of remaining employees,
Management is currently renegotiating the ATU contract which expired March 31, 200% and expects
settlement without disruption to operations.

The Metropolitan Transportation Center, lorated in downtown Buflalo, scrves as 2 bus terminal for
Buffale and its immediate subuebs and contains the offices for the Authosity. The Niagara Falls Transit
Center and the Portage Road Transit Center in Niagara Falls serve as the bus termvnals for Niagara
County.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents principally include cash on hand, money market funds, certificates of deposit,
LLS. Treasury bills, and repurchase agreements with an initial term of less than three months.

Accounts Receivable

Acecounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects 1o collect on outstanding balances
and consist primarily of amouuts due from services provided refated to the Authoriry’s operations and
advertising. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts based on collection history and
agng of accounts. Balances outstanding after reasonable coliection efforts ate written off through 2
charge to allowance for bad debts and a ceedit to accounts receivable.

Investments

The Authonty’s investment policies comply with the New York State Comptroller’s guidelines for Public
Authorities. Tnvestments consist primarily of obligatons of the U.S. Government valued at cost, which
approximates fair value. Securities are held by the banks in the Authority’s name,
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
Revenue Recognition

The Authority’s principal sousces of operating revenucs are fares, airport fees and services, rental
income, and concessions and commissions. Operating revenues from fares represent  surface
ransporfation services and are generated from cash and various fare media including tickess, passes and
tokens which are recognized as income as they are used. Operating revenues from airport fees and
services includes landing and terminal ramp fees. Rental income includes building and ground space
rented to the airdines and aic cargo carriers, among others. Operaring revenues frotn concessions and
cotmissions include parking fees and reatal of remil space. These sources of operating revenues are
recognized upon provision of services.

The Authority receives operating assistance and capital contributions pursuant to variows ledeeal, state
and local government contracts and grant agreements.  Operating assistance and capital conuriburions
are recorded as revenue based on annual appropriations or when expendimres have been incurred in
compliance with grant requirements. Operating assistance and capital contributions represent 52% of
total revenue for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, A significant decrease in this funding may
negatively impact funure operations of the Authority.

Commissions from auto remal companies are recognized based upon a monthly percentage of revenues
earned during the contractual year with an annual adjustment for any minimum annual guaranteed {ees.

Non-operating revenues consist primarily of various federal, state and local operadng subsidies which
are recognized when all applicable eligibility requirements are met.

Moaterials and Supplies Inventory

Materials and supplies irventory 1s valued based on the weiphted average cost method.
i )

Restricted and Designated Asscts

Certain cash deposits and investments are classified as restricted assets in accordance with bonding
requirctnents or because their use 1s Jegally limited o specific purposes such as airport capital expansion
and operations, and the light rail rapid transit system. The Authority’s policy is to use restricted
resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources
are available,

-Druring 2015, .ihe Autherity, designated unrestricted. cash and cash. equivalents olaling $7,685,000 to

fund futace Metro capital purchases (Metro replacement fond).

Bond Costs

Bond sssnance costs, with the exception of prepaid insucance, are expensed as incurred. Insurance costs
are amernzed over the teom of the selated debt

12
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(k)
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{m)

NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unic of the State of New York)

Notes to [inancial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
Capital Assets

The Authority’s policy s to capitalize assets that cost ar feast $5,000 and have estimated usefal lives of 2
years or more. Capital assets ate stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
on the straight-line method over the estitnated useful lives of the assets. The useful lives vsed in
computing depreciation on principal classes of capital assets ate as follows:

Estimated

Useful Life
Metropolitan Transportation Centers 25
Improvements 10-25
Buildings 16-45
Lighr Radd Rapid T'ransic System 10-45
Motor buscs 12
Marine terminalg, docks, and wharves 10-40
Equipment and other 210

Maintenance and repairs are charged o operations as incurred.
Compensated Absences

Authorty employees are granted vacation and sick Jeave in varying amounts in accordance with
collective bargaining agreements or Awthority policy.  The Authordty provides for vacation, sick and
compensatory time attributable to services already rendered and vested. The Kabilities are determined
based on employees” year end pay rates and included i other liabilities in the balance sheets.

Customer Deposits and Mortgage Recording Tax Revenue

Operating revenues received in advance of services provided are recorded as customer deposits.

As required by New York State legislation, the Authority receives a percentage of mortgage recording
taxes collected by Erie County. Receipts are recorded as other Jiabilities until all eligibitity requirements
are met,

Self-Insured Claims

The Avthority is selfrinsuced for property damage, envitonmental claims, persosal injury liabilivy, and
workers” compensation claims. An estimate of the lability is made by the Awthority based primarily on
information available from third-party administrator claims, acruarial studies, and in-house amd outside
legal counsel. Certain assets are intended to fund, in part, the ubtimate settlement of such claims. The
Authonty also maineing excess lability insurance,

Other Liabilities

The Authority administers the funding of regional transportation improvement projects on behall of the
Federal Tlighway Administracon (FHWA) for the Niagara Internationat Transportation Technology
Coaliton (NI'TTEC). Ar March 31, 2013 and 2014, net advance payments provided by the FIIWA for
regional construction projects authotized by NITTEC and the FHWA toteled $5,289,000 and
54,972,000 and arc recorded within other liabilisies in the balance sheets.
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPFORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(n} Pensions
The Authority provides retirement benefits to substantially all emplovees through varous defined
henefit retirement plans (Note 9).
{o) Postemployment Beoefits

In addinon 1o providing pension benefits, the Autherity provides heaith insurance coverage for retired
employees.  Substantially all employees become eligible for these benefits when they reach normal
retirement age with a minimum of tea years of service. Tlealth insurance benefits are provided through
an insuance company whose premiums are based on benefits pakd during the year.

The Authority records these benefits in accordance with GASBE Statement No. 45, Aeceosinting and
Uinancial Reporting by Fimphyers for Postemployvent Bensfite Other Than Pensions.  This pronouncement
established standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of other postemployment benefits
(OPEB) expenses and related liabilities and disclosures (Note 10).

{p} Taxes
As a public benefit entity, the Authority is exempt from federal and state income tax, as well as stale and
loeal property and sales taxes, with the exception of certain agreements for payments made i licu of tax.
{g) Usc of Estimates

The prepartion of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepred 1n
the United States of America requires management to make cerrain estimases and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could
differ from those cstimates,
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 531, 2015 and 2014
(r)  Derivative Instruments

The Authority records detivaiive instruments in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No.
33, Accomiting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instramrents. "1'his Statement enhances the usefulness and
comparability of derivative instrument information geported by state and local governments by
providing a comprehensive framework for the recognition, measutement, and disclosure of derivative
instrument transactions, Derivative instruments such as interest rate and commodity swaps, interest rate
locks, options (caps, floors, and collars), swaptions, forward contracts, and futines coniracts are enceced
into by governments ag investments; as hedges of identified financial risks associated with assets or
liabilitics, or expected transactions (i ¢, hedgeable items); to lower the costs of botrowings; to effectively
fis cash flows or synthetically fix prlc_t_s ot to offset the changes in fair value of hedgeable items, A key
provision of GASD Statement Ne. 53 15 that certain derivative instruments are reported at fair value in
the financial statements. The changes in fair value of hedging derivative instruments do not affect
mvestment revenue bur are reported as deferrals. Altlernatively, the changes in fair value of investment
derivative instruments (which include ineffective hedging derivative instruments) are reported as part of
investment zevenue in the current reporting perdod. Lffectiveness is determined by considering whether
the changes i cash flows or fair values of the potential hedging denvative instrument substantially offset
the changes i cash flows or fatr values of the hedgeable item,

As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, the negative fair values of all investment and ineffective derivative
instruments totaled $5,251,000 and $5,043,000, respectively, and are recorded as noncurrent liabilitics in
the balance sheers. Negadve fair value decreases {increases) of ($208,000) and $2,289,000 for 2015 and
2014 are recorded as non-operating revenues (expenses) in the statements of revenues, expensas and
changes in net positon (Note 5).

Ta reduce its exposure to rising fuel costs, the Authority entered into a contract that fixed the nrices of
certain vehicle fuels purchased from %prcmbtr 1, 2011 through August 31, 2014, with the right to
extend for two additional one year periods. Tt is probable the Authority will take delivery of the fuel as
specified and, therefore, the contract is considered a normal purchase contract and not subject to the
requirements of GASBH Statement No. 53.

(s) Adminisecative Services

In accordance with agreements between the Authority and the New York State Depariment of
Transportation, the Authority functions as the “host agency™ for the Greater Buffalo Niagara Regional
Ir’lmp()rl'ltion Council (GBNRTC), the clulgmted Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the
metro region mcludmg Tirie and Niagara counties, and Niagara International Transporiation Technology
Coalitton (NITTHEC), a reglonal tralfic operations center. As the host agency for both organizations, the
Authority provides cerrain administrative responsibilitics relating to grants management and accounting
functons; however, the Authority has no budgetary oversight and no responsibility for operations,
deticits or debts. Consequently, the Authority’s financial statements do not include the assets, liabilities,
revenues or expenses of GBNRTC o NITTEC. The Authority administered reimbursement grants
totaling $3,540,000 and $2,937,000 for GBNR'I'C and NIT'TEC during 2015 and 2014.

{t)  Reclassification

Certain amounts telating to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2014 have been
rechassitied to be consistent with the carrent vear presentation.
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Minancial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014

{3) Cash Deposits and Investments

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit sisk is the risk dhar, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able 1o recover collateral securities thar are in
the possession of an outside party. At March 31, 2015 and 2014, none of the Authority’s bank deposits were
cxposcd to custodial credit rigk.

‘The following deseribes the Authordity’s policies related to deposit and investment risk:

‘The Authority has a written investment policy applicable to each of its cash, cash equivalents, and investment
acenunts which is in compliance with the Authority’s enabling legislation under Sections 1299 and 2925(3)(%)
of the New Yotk Stawe Public Authorities Law.  [urther, pursuant to collateralizing its investments, the
Authority 1s subject w General Murucipal Law Section 10, Deposit of Public Money, whereby all cash, cash
equivalents, and investments are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Tnsurance Corporation (FDTC) and/or
are fully collateralized with US. government obligations held in the name of the Authority, Tnvestments
consist of U.S. Treasury notes purchased direetly by the Authority.
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

(4) Capital Asseis

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2015 and 2014

Reclassifications
{in thousands) April 1, 2014 Additions and Disposals March 31, 2015
Noo-depreciable capital assels:
Land 3 63,137 % -3 {1,309y 8 61,828
Construction in progress 30,131 15,396 - 45,5627
Total non-deprecialle capiral assets V3,268 15,396 {1,300 107,355
Depreciable capital assets:
Land improvements 339,803 34 {18,587) 321,340
Tight rail rapid rransit
(LRRT) system 615,713 361 {(12,174) 603,900
Alirport buildings 271,209 108 271,317
Merropolitan transportation
centers 20,846 - - 20,846
Marine terminals, docks,
and wharves 26,568 402 (8,168) 18,502
Motor buses 136,432 - (342) 136,070
Eqguipment, buildings,
and other 136,552 1,857 (7,214) 131,195
Torl depreciable capial assers 1,547,193 2762 {46,785) 1,503,179
Accumulared depreciaton:
Latud improvernents 209,710 14,157 (7,046} 215,921
LRRT system 434,703 13,264 (11,733 438,234
Airport buildings 111,084 8,914 - 119,998
Metropolitan transportation
centers 14,838 447 - 15,285
Marine terminals, docks,
and wharves 24,597 209 (7,358) 17,538
Motor buses 78,365 8,766 (342) 86,789
Fequipanent, buildiogs, -
and other 93,513 64,135 (7,181) 92,467
Toral accumulated depreciation 966,810 53,982 (34,500} 986,232
Total depreciable assets, net 580,383 (51,2200 (12,225) 516,938
3 673,651 % (15,824 § (13,5349) $ 624,293

Pursuant to an agreement dated April 8, 2014 between the Authority, Fric Canal Harbor Development Corporation
(ECHDC) and New York State Urban Development Corporation, the Aunthority tansferred for $§2 approximately
200 acres of property along the Lake Erie shoreline in the City of Buffalo w ECHDC, which then entered into an
operations and maintenance agreement with (he Stie of New York Office of Parks, Recreation, and Fisioric
Preservaton to operate the area as a NY State park.  The Authonity continued to operate the property, which
includes a 1,000 ship boat marina, for the benefit of ECHDC uniil November 15, 2014, Capinlization acquisition
cosls with a net book value of $12,981,000 million were written off in fiscal 2015 and recorded as a special jtem in

the staternents of revenucs, expenses and changes n ner position,
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

(A Component Unlt of the State of New York)

Notes 10 Pinancial Statements

Mazch 31, 2015 and 2014

Reclassifications

(in thousands) April 1, 2013 Additions and Disposals March 31, 2014
Non-depreciable capital assots:
Land 3 63,137 3§ 3 R 63,137
Construction in progress 33.505 (3,374) 30,131
‘T'otal non-depreciable capital assets 96,642 (3.374) 03,268
Depreciable capital assets:
Land improvements 344,404 3,435 (8.006) 339,893
Light rail eapid transit
(LRRT) system 611,126 11,877 (7,290 615,713
Alrport buitdings 270,672 2,631 (2,09:H 271,209
Metropolitan transportation
centess 20,849 - )] 20,846
Marine termimals, docks,
and wharves 27,433 6 (R71} 26,568
Motor buses 134,560 3,141 {1,289y 136,412
Equpment, buildings,
and other 134,860 4,809 (3,117 136,552
Total depreciable capital asscts 1,543,964 25 899 (22.670) 1,547,193
Accumnulated depreciaton:
Land improvements 201,420 16,296 (8,006) 209,710
LRRY system 431,847 9,962 (7,106) 434,703
Alrport buildings 104,167 2,005 (2,088) 111,084
AMetropolitan ramsportation
centers 14,380 4611 3 14,838
Marine terminals, docks,
and wharves 25,028 444 {875) 24,597
Motor buses 69,344 10,310 {1,289} 78,365
lquipment, budldings,
and other 20,082 6,543 (3.112) 3513
Total aceumulated deprecintion 936,268 53,021 (22479 V66,810
Total depreciable assets, net 607,690 {27,122 {(191) 580,383
g 704,338 % (27120 § (35605 § 673,651
8
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Stare of New York)

Notes 1o Financizl Statements
Mazch 31, 2015 and 2014
(5) Long-Term Debt

(a) Long-term Obligations (in thousands)
2015

2614

(1) Afrport Revenue Bonds 2014
Series A, matueing Apri! 1, 2029 with varialle annual
principal payments commencing April 1, 2015,
beacng interest at 3.0% 1o 5.0% (net of
umamortized preminm of 7,330 in 2015) $ 72870

Series B, maturing Apcil 1, 2019 with vaciable annual
priccipal payments cormmencing April 1, 2016,
beanng interest at 4.0% to 5.0% (ner of
unamoriized premiwm of $1,040 §a 2015) 13,469

(2y Airpart Revenue Bonds 2004:
Segles A, maturing Apcit 1, 2024 wich varable
anmul paymenrs commencing Maech 10, 2003,
hearing fived interest at 3.646% and a variable
auction interest rage, offset by carned swap
interest gate ar 71% of the prevailing LIBOR rare 34,425

Series C, mamring Apel T, 2024 with variable
annual payments commencing March 10, 2005,
bearing fixed interestat 5.55% and & vadable
auction interest rake, offset by earned swap
intezest rate al 69% of the prevailing LIBOR rate 5450

{3) Mirport Revenue Bonds 199%:
Serles A, maturing April 1, 2029 with variable anpual
principal payments commencing Apeil 1, 2004,
hegsing interest ar 4.75% o 5.875% (net of
wmmogized discount o $1,267 in 2014) -

Series B, maturing April 1, 2019 with varizble
principal payments commencing April 1, 2016,
bearing interest at 5.50% (net of unamortized
discount of $75 in 2014) -

{4} Airport Revenue Bonds 1998, maturing Apsi 1, 2028,
with varizble annual principal paymenss
commencing April 1, 2001, bearing Interest at
4.10% 1o 5.00% (net ofunamortized discounc of
$298 in 2014) -

{5) Payable to the State, non incerest beazing 3,380

{6) Capital leases, monthly payments with fixed
interest rates wanging from 4.19% o
6.59%, maturing in 2019, sceured by related cquipment
and 2 junor licn o net atrport revenues 1,375

43

37,625

5,950

03,403

13,700

1,646
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2015 and 2014

{7y Adrport Revenue Bonds, RFC Series 2000,
for glycol continment, issued to New York State
Epvironmental Facilivies Corporation (35C) maturing
Janvary 15, 2020 with variable annual peincipal paymenss,
bearing interest ac 5.552% to 5.742%, offset by a
variable refunding interest eredit provided by BEFC
(NYS EFC Series 201 LAY

{(8) Bank loan for BNIA capinl projects, monthly payments
with variable interest based on the 30 day LIBOR rate
plus 225 basis points and fixed principal payments,
maturing i 2015, secured by certain non-real estate properLy

(%) Capital lease, monthly pavments with fixed interest
tate of 4.27%, matnng in 2020, secured by related equipment

(1) Capital lease, monthly payments with fixed interest
rate of 7.75%, maturing in 2032, secured by related equipment

(11) Bank Joan [or NIFIA new termina} project, monthly

payments with variable interest based on the 30 day LIBOR rawe
plus 265 basis points and fixed principal payments, maturing in

2015, secured by certain non-real estate propetty

(12) Capital lease, monthly payments with fixed interest rate of 5.5%,
maturing in 2016, sccuzed by related equipment

(13) Capiral lease, monthly payments with fixed iaterst vate of 2.57%,

maturing in 2022, secured by related equipment

Less curreat ])OI'['EO 28

44

2015 2014
1,185 1,395
387 3,357
1,371 1,616
4,012 4,113
. 1,424
5 10
2,351 2,515
140,280 153,076
8,169 12,875

$ 132,11 S 141,101
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014

The following is a description of the Authority’s long-term debt:

(1) On September 3, 2044, the Authority wssued 865,340,000 Series 2014A and $12,430L,000 Scries
20148 Arport Revenue Bonds at a premivm of $9,336,000. These bonds were issued to refund
oustanding Sedes 1999A, 19998, and 1998 bonds in the amounts of §61,525,000, $13,775,000, and
513,485,000 respectvely. The AuLhom} relunded the bonds to take advantage of historically low
interest rates. The economic gain on the transaction {the differeace between the present values of
the debt service payments on the old and new debt) is $14,828,000.

{2) On Janvary 15, 2004, the Authonty issued $63,000,000 Series 2004A and $10,025,000 Series 2004
Airpore Revenue Bonds with [ixed interest rates of 3.646% and 3.55%, respectively, and vadable
auction rates offset by a swap of fixed percentages of the prevailing LIBOR rate. These bonds were
issued to reflund the Series 19944 and the Series 1994C Airport Revenue Bonds of $55,435,000 »nd
$9,765,000 with miterest rates ranging from 5.70% to 6.25% for Series 1994A and 5.50% to 6.00%
for Series 1994C, respectively.

(3) On September 17, 1999, the Authority issued $102,110,000 of additional Airport Revenue Bonds Lo
provide funding for the continued expansion of the BNIA. The bonds were issued as a supplement
to the 1994 and 1998 bond issuance with similar provisions, On September 3, 2014, bonds that
remained outstanding i the prmupal amount of §75,300,000 were refunded by a porton of the
2014 Refunding Bonds maturing over the same period at a reduced interest cost to lower the cost of
borrowing on the remaming mwaturities,

() On August 25, 1998, the Authority issued $20,375,000 of additional Airport Revenue Bonds to
provide fundmg for the expansion of the BNIA. The bonds were issued as a supplement o the
1994 bond issuance with similar provisions. On Seprember 3, 2014, bonds rhat remained
outstanding in the prncipal amount of $13,485,000 were refunded by a portion of the 2014
Refunding Bonds maturing over the same period at a reduced interest cost to lower the cost of
horrowing on the remaning marnirities.

(5} The State Legislature passed a law in 1994 thar granted the Authority immediate relief from the
repayment covenant for a non-interest bearing loan totaling $3,380,000. The law provides in
pertinent part that repayment of the loan would be defesred for a two-year peciod, which expired on
May 12, 1996. The Director of the Budget has been granted the discretion to either enter nto an
agreement with the Authority setting forth a schedule for reimbursenzent withour interest or waive
the sequirement for reimbussement in whole or in part, No decision has been made ro darc.
Maturities for this loan have been included in the category of loans and capital leases for long-term
debt matugities for 2031 through 2035 due o the uncertainty of repayment.

The Atrport Revenue Bonds {rom 2014, 2004, and EIC Series 2000 are payable from and sccured by a
lien against ner revenues derived from the operations of the BNIA. Payment of scheduled boad
principal and interest payments are also guaranteed by municipal bond insurance polices mantained by
the Authority.  The bonds are special hmited obligations of the Authorizy. They are neither general
obligations of the Authority nor a debt of the State or any political subdivision,
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Nortes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014

Changes in leng-terin debt for the yeass ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in thousands):

2015 2014

Badance, beginning of year $ 153,976 $ 170,399
Proceeds from tssuance of deli 87,105 2,515
Repayment of long-term debt, ner of discount

and premium amortization (100,801) (18,938}
Balance, end of year 140,280 133,976
Less current pottion 8,169 12 875

Noncurtent porhon s NE

Required principal and interest payments for Jong-teon debt, net of unamortized discounts, were as
follows (in thousands):

Loans
and Capital Leases Serial Bonds
Unamortized
Principal Interest Privicipal Premium Interesy
Years ending March 31,
2016 5 1,319 3 474 8 6,850 5 1,276 $ 3,948
2017 67 432 8,315 1,155 3,616
2018 1,016 391 8,500 1,021 3,500
2019 1,066 316 8,995 037 3,164
2020 a7 302 9,180 826 2,969
2321 . 2025 1,798 1,165 46,295 2,678 9,589
2026 - 2030 1,397 G687 30,695 677 2,391
2031 - 2035 4 A0 115 -

$ 12880 ¢ 3912 % 118830 § 85870 § 29177

At March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Authority was in compliance with alt loan and bond covenants.

(b)  Derivative Instruments
Interest Rate Swaps

To reduce exposure 1o changing isterest rates, the Awthonty entered into two hedping interest mate
swaps with Goldman Sachs Capital Markets, L. in connection with ws $73,025 Refunding Series 20044
and 2004C variable-rate bonds. The interest rate swaps are forward, floating-1o-fixed agreements in
notiona] amounts equal to the outstanding bonds pursuant to which the Authority will pay a specified
fixed rate of interest in recurn for receipts of a variable rate of interest based on a fixed percentage of the
prevailing LIBOR rate. The intention of the mterest rate swaps was to effectively change the Authority’s
variable iaterest rate on the bonds to a synthetic fixed rate of 3.646% and 3.55% lor Seoies 2004A and
2004C, respectively,
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the State of New Yorl)

Notes to Financial Statements
tarch 31, 2015 and 20614
Risks

Below is 4 list of risks inherent in the Authority’s interest rate swaps:

Basir Rivk - The risk that the Authority’s variable rate interest payments will not equal the vatirble rate

SWip recelps because they are based on different indexes. If the rate under the swap is lower than the

hond mren_%f rate, the payment under the swap agreement will not fully reimburse the Authority for the

interest payments on the bonds. However, if the bond interest rate Is lower than the swap payment,

th(‘r{: is 4 net gain to the Authority. The Authority experienced 2n unfavorable basis vatiance of
2,224, OOU and $2,137,000 for the years ending March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Scr;c 2004 Bonds were 1ssued 10 refund the Authority’s outstanding Adrport Revenue Bonds, Series
1994A and 1994C, which, togerher with the Authority’s interest rate swaps entered inro with respect to
the Senes; 2004 Bonds, are expected to achieve debt service savings for the Authomty.

i
Tax Révk i~ The visk thar a change in Federal tax rates will alter the fundamental reiationship berween
auction tases and LIBOR.

Tuterest Rovve Risk —The risk that changes will adversely affect the fair value or cash flows.

Credit Risk — The risk that a counterparty will not fudfill its obligations under the swap. In this event, the
Authority would have to pay another entity 1o assume the position of the defaulding counterparty. The
Authority has sought to lisut its countesparty risk by contracting with a highly rated entity,

Terms

At March 31, 2015, the fair value of the Scries 2004A and 2004C interest rate swaps was a negative fair
value of $4,566,000 and $684,000, respectively, At March 31, 2014, the fair value of the Scoes 2004A
and 2004C interest rate swaps was a negative fair value of §4,379,000 and $664,000, respectively, The
combined negative fair values of $5,251,000 and $5,043,000 wete recorded in accordance with the
provisions of GASB 53, Ac¢ March 31, 2015, the notional amounts of Series 2004A and 2604C swaps
were $34425,000 and $£5,450,000, rcapcuu\’cly At March 31, 2014, the notional amounts of Series
2004A and 2004C swaps were $37,625,000 and $5,950,000, respectively. The terms of the interest rate
swaps will remain in effect untll the bonds are fully matured on Apsl [, 2024 or a 10 year invesfment
maturity. ¢

The Authority evaluated the effecdveness of the interest rate swap derivatives that existed at the end of
the reporting period. Due to the nisks inberently noted above, the Senes 20044 and 2004C iierest rate
swaps as:of March 31, 2012 were considered ineffective because they did not meet the cffectiveness
criteriz under the syathetic instrument method (SIM) quantitative method of evaluatng effectivenass.
Therefore, changes 1 the [ar value of the swaps are recorded as derivative instrument losses 1o the
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position for 2012 and all future perods.
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Nates to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(6) Uneamed Mortgage Recarding Tax 88(c) Revenue

Changes in uncarned morigage recording tax revenues for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 were as
follows (in thousands):

2015 2014
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,858 % 1,394
Receipts of funds 4,961 5,817
Interest income 1 1
Light rail capatal and operating expendinres (5,888) (5,354)
Balance, end of year § 032 T 1858

(7) Passenger Facility Charges

In 1992, the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) approved the Authority’s application to impose collection
of Passenger Facility Charpes (PFC) ar the BN1A. PFCs used specifically for FAA approved projects at the
BNTA and included in nen-operating revenues totaled §9,518,000 and $10,176,000 for the years ended March
31, 20115 and 2014,

24
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{A Component Unit of the Srate of New York)
Notes to Financal Starements
Nazch 31, 2015 and 2014
(8) Operating Assistance

Operatons aze funded primarly by farebox revenues from passeagers and operating subsidy payments from
the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) under Scetions 5307 and 5311 of the Urban Mass Transportation
Administracion (UMTA)Y Act; the State, Bre and Niagara Covnties {pursuant to State transportation laws); and
the Buffaio & Fort Erie Public Bridge Aunthority. Assistance recognived as revenue for the years ended
March 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in thousands):

2015 2014
Meteo:
[FTA:
Section 5307 and 5314 assistance $ 20,154 0§ 14681
Sectinn 5307 capital maintenance - 429
QOther 248 1,909
Toral FTA 20,402 17,019
State:
Statewide transit operating assistance program 42,159 40,827
Section 18b assistance 4,100 4,100
Section 3307 capiral maintenance match 2,512 1,882
Other - 210
Total State 48,7711 47019
Ene County:
88(c) - general 4,619 4,750
Mortgage recording tax (section 88a) 6,711 7,129
Section 18b matching funds 3,657 3657
Sales tax receipts 19,163 18926
Total Erie County 34,150 34,462
Niagara County:
Matigage recording 1ax 1,007 1,167
Section 18b matching funds 443 443 -
Total Niagara County 1,450 1,010
Buffalo and For 1irte Public Brdge Authonty 200 206
104,973 100310
NFTA: - -
Department of Homeland Secusity 815 872
Deparument of Justice 1 8
FEMA 72 -
898 880

§ 105871 ¥ 101,190
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements
Mazch 31, 2015 and 2014

{(9)  Retirement Plans

(a) New York Stare Retirement System

The Authority pasticipates in the New York State and Locat Employees” Retirement System (ERS) and
the New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS) (the Systems). The Systems
are cost-sharing, multiple-employer public emplovee retirement systems that provide retirement benefits
as well as death and disability benefits, These benefits are provided in accordance with the New York
State Retirement and Social Security Law (NYSRSSL), which also governs obligations of employers and
employees to contribute. The benefits © employees are puaranteed under the State constitution. The
Auvrhority’s election to participate in the State plans s iteevocable.

As set forth in the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller of the State {the Comptroller) serves as sole trustee and
administeative head of the Systerns. The Comptroller adopts and may amend rules and regulations for
the administration and rransaction of the Systems and for the custody and control of their funds. The
Systems issuc publicly availuble financial reports that include financil statements and required
supplementary information. Those reports may be obrained by writing to the New York State and Local
Retirement  Systems, 110 Smre  Streer, Albany, New York 12236, or on the internet ar
WL 0sc.state.ny.us/ retire.

No employee contributions are required for those whose service began pror to July 27, 1976, The
Systems require employee conuibutions of 3% of salary for the first 10 years of service {or thosc
employees who Joined the Systems on or after July 27, 1976 through December 31, 2009, Participants
whose service began on or alter January 1, 2070 through March 31, 2012 are required to contribute 3%
of their salary for the entire length of service. Employees who joined on or alter Apri 1, 2012 contribute
based on annual wages at a rate of 3-6% for their entive length of service. Under the authority of the
NYSRSSL, the Comptroller annually certifies the actuatially determined rates used in computing the
enmyployers” contributions based on salaties pald during the Systems’ fiscal year ending Maich 31

The Authority’s contributions and rates for the past theee years were as {ollows (in thousands):

Year Amount FERS PFRS

2015 $ 6,876 10.9% . 27. 7% 7.2% - 27.6%
2014 S 6,162 11.5% - 28.8% 7.3% - 28.8%
2013 S 5,897 10.1% - 18.6% 7% - 25.4%
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WNIAGARA FRONTIER TRAINSPORTATION AUTHORIETY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
(b) Amalgamated Transit Union Division 1342 NFT Metro Pension Plan

Plan Description

All full-time Metro employees who are ATU members are covered by the Amalgamated Transit Union
Local 1342 Niagara Froatier Transit Metro System Pension Fund (the ATU Plan), a defined benefit
pension plan esrablished in accordance with an Agreement and Declaration of Trust between the AT
and Metro (the Agreement), Pursuant to the ATU Union Contmct signed in 1993, a poriion of
part-time employee compensation is also contributed by Metro to the ATT Plan, although pare-time
employees do not participate in or benefit from the ATU Plan,

The ATU Plan 15 maoaged by four Trustees: two nmion representatives and two management
representatives. These Trustees are responsible for management of investments and payments o
retirees. The ATU Plan issues a publicly available financial repore that inciades financial sratements and
notes. That report may be obtained by writing to Amalgamated Transit Union Local 1342, 196 Orchard
Park Road, West Seneca, New York 14224,

Funding Requirement

Each cligible employee is required to conuzibute the greater of sixteen dollars or 4% of their weekly
pagroll. Metro’s contribution is 1% of cligible employee wages and is detestmined pursuant o the
collective bargaining agreement (CBA} between Metro and the ATU, Metro’s contrbutions to the Plan
recorded on the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, pursuant (o the CBA,
totaled §5,103,000 and $5,448,000 for 2015 and 2014, The Apreement provides that Mezro is not
obligated to make any other payment to [und the benefits or to meet any expenses of adminisiration
and, i the event of termination, Mewro will have no obligation for further contributions to the ATU
Plan. Therefore, net pension assets and labiities of the ATU plan are not recorded by the Authority.
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(c)

NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
Metro Nonunion Retivement Plan

Effective January 1, 1997, active non-bargaining unit participants in the Niagara Fronder Transit Metro
System, Inc. Retirement Plan (Metro Plan) teansferred to the employment of the NI'TA and were given
the opporunity fo elect to have their contribution accounts transferred from the Metre Plan o ERS,
The enabling legislation that provided for dhe purchase of service credits under BERS for pre-transfer
service obliges the Aunrhority to make $465,000 additonal annual coneributions comumencing
December 1997 to ERS (in addition to s regular employer contribution) each year for 25 years, and to
amortize the liability assumed by ERS for benefits atuibutable to the former Metro Plan participants’
pre-transfer service. The Metro Plan was amended as of January 1, 1998, at which time the plan was
frozen.

The Authority’s anmual pension cost and net pension obligation of the Metro Noaunior Plan for the
years ended March 31 were as foliows for the plan yeac which encompasses January 1 through
December 31 (in thousands):

2015 2014
Annual required contribution $ 467 5 432
Interest on net pension asset 55 31
Adjustment to annual required
contribution (55) B3O
Annuzal pension cost 467 432
Contributions made {20) 73
[ncrease in net pension oblipaton 447 359
Ner pension obligation, beginning of year 926 567
Ner pension obligation, end of year 3 13713 8§ 926

The annual required contribution was determined using the Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method. The
actuary assumed a 4.23% investment rate of return, mortality rates based on the Combined Applicable
Mortality Table for the valuadon year, and retrement age 62 with 5 vears of service.

At January 1, 2015, on the basis for actuarial assumptions used for funding purposes, the aciuadal value
of the plan asscts of $4,889.000 1s lower than the actuarial accrued habilitics of $3,033,000.
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Srate of New York)

Notes ro Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
Postemployment Benefits

Posteniploymrent Health Care

The Authority provides a defined benefit postemnployment health care plan {the Plan) for esseatially all full-
time employees with a minintam of ten years of service upon retirement. Upon retirement, most Authority
employees are provided 50% of the medical insurance premiums while cerrain management employees hiced
prior to February 2004 are provided with contnuation of full medical coverage.

Metro retirees are provided with a monthly stipend representing the insurance premiurn amount of single
medical coverage if they retived prior to January 1, 2004, 1f they retired subsequent to January 1, 2004, Metro
retirees are provided with continuation of fult medical coverage.

GASB Statement No. 45 requires the recognition of the costs of postemployment benefits during the periods
when employecs render services that will eveatvally entte them to the benelits. This cost 1s relerred to as
the annual required contribution {ARC) and includes:

- amortzation of the unfonded actuarial accrued labiliy (UAAL) for the curtent year, which is the
actuarially-determined and unfunded present value of all futuse OPEB costs associated with current
emjprloyees and redrees as of the beginning of the year

- nowmal cost which s the actuarialiy-determined cost of future OPEDB carned in the corrent year

The ARC represents an amousnt that, if funded each year, would uldmately satisfy the UAAL at the end of the
amortization period (30 years) as well as each year’s normal cost dubng that dmeframe. A Hability is
recognized to the cxtent that aceual funding 1s less than the ARC. This liability is reflected as a nonenrrent
liabily on the statements of net position as other postemployment beneliss. The Authority’s Board has the
authority 1o establish a funding policy for the Plan. The Authority’s current policy is to fund the benefits to
the extent of premium payments, on a “pay-as-you-go” basis. The plan does not issue a publicly available
financial report
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Siatements
March 31, 2015 and 2014

The following table summarizes the Authority’s ARC, the amount acually contributed o the Plan, and
changes in the Authority’s net OPEB obligation for the vears ended March 31, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014

Annual required contribution

Normal cost $ 7,284 § 7,734

Amontizaton of UAAL 10,884 11,943
Annual required contribution 18,168 19,677

Interest on OPEB obligation 4,880 4,266

Adjustment to ARC {(6,657) (5,820}
Annual OPEB cost 16,391 18,123

limployer contributions {4,007) (4,483

Increase in net OPEB obligation 12,384 13,640
Ner QPLB obligation, beginning of year 108,434 94,794
Net QPLB obligation, end of year $ 120,818 $ 108,434

The Authonty’s total annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed and the net OPEB
obligation for the years ended March 31, 2013 through March 31, 2015 were:

Annual Annual
OPEB OPIEB Cost Nct OPEB
Mazch 31, Cost Contributed  Obligation
2015 b 16,391 24.45% $ 120,818
2014 $ 18,123 24.74%, $ 108,434
2013 g 17,028 21.59% k) 94,794

‘The actuarial analysis supporting the GASB 45 obligation for 2015 was completed using 2 full valuation date
of Aprl 1, 2014, As of that dace, the 1ol actvarial accrued liability (UAAL) for future benefirs was
$57,525,000 for the Authornty and $171,654,000 for Meuro, all of which is unfunded. These projections are
based on the April 1, 2014 census data, clanms information and the impact of healtheare reform. “[he covered
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $85,219,000 and the ratio of the UAAL
ter-the covered payroll was 268.93%.

The actuanal valuation involves estimates of costs and the impacts of cvents far ivo the future. Lixamples
include employee nirnover and retirement rates, emplovec and retiree mortality, and changes in health care
costs and interest rates. The benefits are subject ro routine actuarial revaluations and these analyses will
reflect revised estimates and assumptions as actual resuhts are compared to past projections and expectations
of the future. Any changes in these Eactors will impact the results of fufure valuations.
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2015 and 2014

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes ta
the financial stateinents, presents multiyear trend information abour whether the acmarial value of plan
assets Is Increasing or decreasing over time refative o the achuanal acerued liabiities for benefits.

The sciuanial caleulations reflect a fong-term prospective and use techniques designed w reduce short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued labilities. A summary of the methods and assumptions is provided below:

- Healtheare cost trend is estimated at 6.00% next year, ultimately declining 10 3.886% in year
2075 and remaining level thereafter

- Actuagiat cost method used is Projected Unir Credit
- Discount rate 1s 4.50%

- Amortization method is level dollar method over average life expectancy for plan
participants

- RP-2014 Mortality Table for annuitants and non-annuitants with projected mortabity
improvements using Scale MP-2014, with a blue collar adjustment

Postersployment Stiperds

As of March 31, 2015, there are 191 retirees within Metro who retived prior ¢o January 1, 2004, Fach retiree
is provided with a cash stipend cquivalent 1o the single medical premium cost and, if enrolled in Medicare,
the retiree also is provided with full Medicare reimbursement. The reticee has the option of any combination
of cash stipend and/or health insurance continuation.

Health care benefits whete the recipient has the option to receive cash stipends in lien of coverage are
treated as pension benefits. The Authority’s annual pension cost and net pension obligation (asset) related to
such stipends was;

2015 2014

Annual required conrribution $ 2,815 5 2805
laterest on net pension cost (171) {190
Adjustment to ARC 489 506

Angrual pension cost 3133 O _ 3121 .

Employer contributions (2,529) (2,663)

Incresse in net pension asset 604 458
Net pension asset, beginning of vear (4,288) {4,746)
Net pension asset, end of year $ (3,684) § (4,288)

The actvartal accrued liabilicy ar March 31, 2015 and 2014 was $23,602 and $24,665, respectively, all of which
is unfunded. ‘The net pension asset of 53,684 and $4,288 as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, has
been recorded as a net noncurrent liability on the statements of net position as other postemployiment
benefits. "The current policy is to fund on the “pay as you go™ basis.
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes 10 Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
A summary ol the actuarial methods and assumptions is provided belows
- Healthcare cost trend is estimated at 7.75% next year, ultimately declining to 3.886% in year
2075 for pre-age 65; G.0% next year ultimately declining o 3.886% in 2075 for post-age 65
-~ Actuarial cost method used is Projected Unit Credit
- Discount rate is 4.0%
- Amortization method is 30 vears, open, level doliar method

- RP-2014 Mortality Table for Annuirants with projected mortality improvements using Scale
MP-2014 on a generational basis

(31) Leases

A substantial portion of the Authority’s revenue is generated by a number of fixed-term operating leases ar its
airport, marine and teansportation center facilities. The leases generally provide for rentals determined on the
basis of a rate per square foot occupied or a percentage of the lessee’s gross revenues with guaranteed
minimum amounts. Total revenue from leases was $65,381 and $59,980 in 2015 and 2014, including
guarantecd mintmom rentals of $26,402 and $22,740 during 2015 and 2074, respectively.

Fixed-term operating leases in effecr ar March 31, 2015 are expected Lo yield futere munimum rentals as

follows:

2016 § 20,944
2017 20,378
2018 17,081
2019 11,244
2020 3,724
2021 - 2025 15,499
2026 - 2030 6,854
2031 - 2035 1,10
2036 - 2040 203
2041 - 2045 3903
§ 98,130

(12) Commiunents and Contingencies
(7) Litigation and Claims

In the normal course of business, it is not uncommon for the Authority to incur litigation surrounding
certain events. There are ousstanding lawsuits involving substantial amounts that have been fited agaunst
the Authority. Based on the facts presently known, management and in-house lepal counsel do not
expect these matters to have g materdal adverse effect on the Authority’s financial condition or results of
aperalons.
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(c)

NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSFORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
Self-Insured Claims

The Authonty assumes the liability foc most risks including, but not limited to, property damage,
environmental claims, personal injury claims, and workers’ compensation claims. Estimated liabilities for
these claims, which are not covered by insurance, have been reflected in the financial statements.
Workers’ compensation Habilities are estimated based on an actuarial valuadon dated Apnl 13, 2015.
Other scif-insured liabilities are estmated by the Authosity based en avatlable imformation. Management
believes that such liabilities are adequate based upon historical experience and the opinions of intermnal
sk management administeators and legal counsel.

Changes in the reporied liabiliy claims for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 were as Tollows:

2015 2014
Liability, beginning of year $ 34,127 $ 32135
Cutrent year claims and ¢hange in estimate 11,705 5,905
Claim payments (10,008) (7,913
Liabidity, cad of vear $ 35824 3 34127

The Authority is subject to various federal, state, and local laws and regulations relating to the protection
of the environment. The Authority has esmblished procedures for the ongoing cvaluation of is
operations to identily potential environmental exposures and assure compliance with regulatory policies
and proceduses

Environmental expenditures that refate to cutrent operations are expensed or capitalized in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 49, sAapuntivg and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Oblipations.
Liabilities are recorded when environmental assessments and/or remedial elforts are probable, and the
costs can be reasonably estimated. Generally, the timing of these accruals coincides with notification by
an outside agency, determination of the need for a feasibdity study, or the Authority’s commitment (o a
formal plan of action based on completion of the feasibility stody. The Authority currently has no
accrued environmental liabilives.

Project Conunitments
As ol Mareh 31, 2015, the Awhority has cominenced several projects including:
- BNIA noise abatement program estimated at $54,306,000 of which "§48,425,000 "Was expended

(expenditures are classified as non-operating expenses in the statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position)

- Rall car refurbishment estimated at $45,564,000 of which $29,284,000 was expended

- DBNTA Tong Term Lot 1B expansion estimated ar $5,010,000 of which $4,483,000 was cxpended
- Metro (Bus and Rail) fare collection upgrade $20,271,000 of which $859,000 was expended

- Metro CNG Fuehng Statton estimated ar $8,288,000 of which $595,000 was expended

Funding for these projects will be provided from anticipated federal, state and local grant awards,
passeuger faciliny charges, outside fimancing and other revenue sources,
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2015 and 2014

(13) Segment Information — Buffalo Niagara International Airport

BNIEA 15 Western New York’s primary passenger and cargo airport. In fiscal year 1991, the Authority began the
.*\srpml Improvement Program to build a new terminal building and provide improved facilities for BNIA
passengers. The Authorily issued Airport Revenue Bonds (Note 5) pursuant to a Master Resolution approved
by the Board of Commissioners {or the construction of the BNIA. The Master Resolution containg certain
Lomj*.lmuu covenants including requiring net airport revenues to be a minimum percentage of net debt
service. The bonds are payable from and are secured by a Hen on net revenues derived from the operations of
the BNIA The bouds are special limited obligations of the Authority. They are not general obligations of the
r\uil)orm and are not a debt of the State or any political subdivision.

(a) g Condcnsed Balance Sheets (BNIA)

; 2015 20144
Assels:
; Current $ 65,894 5 61,971
I Canital assets, ner 245,500 265770
Other 18.792 17.834
Total assets $ 330.186 S 345,575
Liabilities:
Currene labilifes % 14.568 3 [8.251
Lone-teomn labilides 135,522 143,893
Totai Habilites 150.0920 162,144
Net nosidon:
Net iivestrment In capital assets 113,080 121,630
Restrcted 37371 36,804
Lintestriceed 20 645 24.997
Total net posidon 130,096 183,431
T'otal labiitdes and net positon 330286 S 345375

Included in current and other assets aze airport revenue bond fund accounts and other cash and deposit
accounts totaling $33,822,000 and $20,400,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015 and $33,868,000

- and §22,555,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, cespectively.
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NIAGARA FRONTTER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014

(b}  Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Nex Position (BNIA)

2015 2014
Operating revenues:
Concessions and commissions $ 26,563 RS 27,400
Airport fees and services 17,480 16,775
Rental income 11,028 10,682
Other 3,853 4,000
Total operating revenues 58,924 58,857
Operating expenscs 40,834 40,766
Depreciation expense 19,593 20,026
Operating income (loss) (1,503) (1,935}
Non-operating revenues {expenses):
Change in fair value of swap agreements (208) 2,289
[nterest expense, net (5,244) (7,133)
Passenger facility charges 9,518 10,176
Alrport noise abatement (4,693) (7,291)
Other, net (7,658 6,231
Loss before capital contributions {9,788) (10,125)
Capital contributions 6,453 8010
Change in aet position {3,335) (2,115)
Net position, beginning of year 183,431 185,346
Net pasition, end of year $ 180,096 3 183437
(c) Condensed Statements of Cash Flows (BNIA)
2015 2014
Net cash provided by operating activites $ 18,149 3 24,104
Net cash provided by investing activides 106 141
MNet cash used in capital and related financing activities (13,811) (20,298}
Net increase in cash 4,444 3,947
Cash, beginning of vear 54,404 §M),517
Cash, end of year $ 58,908 S 54 464
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WIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financiat Statements
March 31, 2015 and 2014
{d}  Master Resolution Covenant

As required by the Master Resolution authorizing the issuance of airport revenue bonds, the Authority
charges rales, rentals, fees, and charges at the BNTA which aee sufficient fo pay debt service, OIJL‘T‘lI'.]ﬂ!L)
expenses, and any and all other claims and charges relating to the BNIA. In addition, net aiport
revenues must at all times be at least 125% of net debt service on all bonds outstanding. The Authority
has rthe ability to bill the airlines to meet the bond covenant pursuant to the Airdine Use and Leasc
Agreement,

Awrport revenues are defined in the Master Resolution as the total of all revenue from all sources
collected by the Authority at the BNIA, which specifically excludes passenger facility charges and
includes interest income. Passenger facility charges are aot pledged as wcumj for the Airport Revenue
Bonds, Operating expenses are defined as all costs 1o operaice and maintain the BNIA mcludmg general,
adminisrative, and professional fee expenses allocated by the Authority. Debt service is defined as the
total amount required to pay principal and interest, net of amounts available for the payment of interest
as defined by the Masrer Resolution.

2015 2014
Atsport revenues:
Operating revenues $ 58,924 3 5HB8857
Interest income 99 115
(Gross alrport revenues 59,023 58,972
Operating expenses, excluding depreciation (40,834) {40,766)
Net afrport revenues 18,189 18,206
Net debt service:
Principal payable 7,710 1,767
Interest payable 6,441 7,131
Passenger facility charges (2,103) (1,447
Net debt service $ 12,048 S 13,451
Dbt service coverage percentage 150.97% 135.35%
Minimuom percentage requirement 125.00% 125.00%
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

amnding Progress

' ._. s
r Other Pos

smplovmint I

gl Pen

For the year ended March 31, 2013

Other Postemployment Bencfits

Unfuaded
Actuarial UAAL as a
Actvarial  Actuanal Accrued  Defiviency of Perceatage
Valuation Value Liability Assets over Funded Covered of Covered
Date of Assets (UAAL) UAAL Ratio Payroll Payrall
4/1/2010 § $ 226,304 {226,304) 0% § 83,823 270.0%
1/1/2012 § 8 194,540 8§ (194,540) 0% % 82,536 235.97%
/172004 § g 229,180 §  (207,063) 0% 3 85,219 245.5%
Pastemployment Stipends
Unfunded
Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial  Actuarial  Accrued Deficieney of Percentage
Valuation Value Liability Assets over Funded Covered of Covered
Date of Assets (UAAL) UAAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
4/1/2012 % 5 20814 § {29,819 D% $ 0.0%
4172013 § 3 26,328 S {20,328) 0% 3 - 0.0%
Actuarial UAAL asa
Actuarial  Actuarial  Accrued  Deficiency of Percentage
Yaluation Value Liability Assets over Funded Covered of Covered
Date of Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
1/3/2013 § $ 6,465 § {1,730) 3%, n/a 0%
1/1/2014 $ § 5457 8§ (363) 93% n/a 0.0%
L/1/2015 § 3 5033 % (1<) 97% n/a 0.0%
See tudspendent asditors” riport 3
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INIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

(A Cormpaneat Unit of the State of New York)

Nasch 31, 2015 2014
NFTA Metro Total NITTA Metro Total
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and eash equivalents $ 26270 5 20,179 § 46,4492 S 23,335 S 1,769 § 25104
Accounts receivable, net 3,894 1,799 5,693 4,695 1,460 6,155
{rrants receivable 5,560 5,856 11,416 3,041 22,044 25,485
Eue to/from affiliate (6,809) 6,809 - (5,228 5,228 -
Materials andd supplivs inventory - 4,541 4,541 q 4,135 4,159
Prepaid espenses and other 263 111 374 371 146 517
29,178 39,295 68,473 26,218 34,802 61,020
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equevalents 45,142 783 45,925 46,479 08 46,887
Investmernts - 25 25 - 25 25
45,142 808 45,950 45479 433 16,912
Prepait bond insurance 094 - 694 1,543 . 1,543
Capital assets, net 340,322 283,971 624,203 371,687 301964 673,651
386,158 284,779 670,937 419700 302,397 722,106
Total assets $ 415336 5 324,074 3 739410 S 445927 $337,199 S$783.120
Liabilitics
Cureent Habilities:
Current portion of long-tenm debr $ 7,878 § 291 3 8,169 S 12,559 § 316 S 12875
Accounes payable aad weerued expenses 14,266 14,194 28,460 14,786 15,127 29913
Customer deposits 295 459 754 1,249 1,910 3,159
Orcher liabilites 5,287 932 6,219 4,972 1,858 0,830
27,726 15,876 43,602 33,566 19,214 52,777
Noncureent Habilities:
Fair value of swap agrecments 5,251 - 5,251 5,043 5,043
Long-term delst 130,368 1,743 132,111 139,047 2,054 141,10
Other postemployment benefits 24,530 92,594 117,134 22,485 81,061 14,146
Payalale 10 NY'S Retirement 7,070 - 1070 6,068 4,008
lstimated liability for sellinsured claims 6,017 29,807 35,824 3,658 28,469 M127
173,246 124,144 297,390 178301 112,184 290485
Total Tiabilities 200,972 140,020 77 340,992 7 TTUZITE67 131,395 343,262
MNet position
Net investment uy capital agsets 202,076 281,937 484,013 220,081 299,594 519.075
Restricted 19,855 {124) 39,71 41,507 (1425 40,082
Unrestucted (27,567) (97,759) (125,326} (27.528)  {92,365) {119,893}
Total net position 214,354 184,054 398,418 234,060 205,803 439864
Total Liabilitics and net position $ 415,336 $ 324,074 $ 739,416 S 445927 $337199 §783126

See tndependert aueditors” rehost,
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

{A Componcent Unit of the Stie of Noew York)

Vot the years ended March 31, 2015 2014
NFTA Metro Total NITIA Metro Tomk
Operating revenues:
Iiares ] - 5 37,398 § 37398 S - % 36,714 S 36,714
Concessiong and commissions 28,509 - 28,509 29,035 29,035
Rental income 16,412 - 16,412 15,976 15,976
Abrpor fees and seevices 17,643 - 17,643 16,874 16,374
Tenant reimbursements 1,632 - 1,632 1,651 - 1,631
Boat harbor lees 1,255 - 1,255 1,215 1215
Other operatng revenoes 2,904 T3 3,671 3,115 760 3,875
Total operating revenues 68,355 38,171 106,526 67,860 37474 105,340
Operating expenses:
Salaries and employer benefits 32,743 104,207 133,950 31,347 101,597 132,944
Other postemployment benefits 2,055 10,933 12,988 2472 11,626 14,098
Depreciation 25,761 28,749 54,510 27,987 25,034 53,021
Mainsfenauce and repains 11,133 8,751 19,884 11,004 7,583 18,587
Transit fuel and power - 6,764 6,764 - 8,100 8,106
Utiliies 3,507 1,778 5,285 4,204 2,154 6,358
Insurance and injuries 803 3,585 4,388 973 3,319 4,292
Crther 11,595 2,952 14,547 11,449 2,992 19,441
Administration cost realiocation (4,318) 4,318 - {,030) 4,030 ‘
Total operating cxpenscs 83,279 169,037 252,316 85,106 166,441 251,847
Operating loss (14,924)  (130,866)  (145,790) (17,540)  {128,967) ({116,507)
Non-gperating revenucs (expenses):
Operating assistance 898 104,973 105,871 880 100,310 101,190
Passenger facility charges 9,518 - 9,518 10,i76 10,176
Change in faie vithue of swap agreements {208) - (208) 2,28¢ . 2,289
Intetest expense, net (5,767) (76) (5,843) (7,696) (B0} {7,782)
Aurpost noise abiterment (4,693} - (4,693) (7.291) . {7,291)
Other non-operating cxpense, ner (3,853) (864) 1,717 (1,202) (181} {1,383)
Non-operating net revenuces (expenses) {4,105) 104,033 99,928 (2,844 100,043 97,199
Change in net position before capital B e e e
contributions and special item {1%,029) (26,833) {45,862) (20,38 28,924y (49,308
Capital conttibuoons 12,314 5,083 17,397 12,446 11,264 23,710
Speetal item - property disposition (12,981} - (12,981 - -
Change in net position {19,696) (21,750} (41,446) (7,938) {17,660)  (25,598)
MNet position, beginning of year 234,060 205,804 439,804 241,998 223,464 465,462

Net position, end of year

$ 214,364 § 184,054 5 398,418

S 234,000

§ 205,804

$ 439,864

See sndependent auditors' report.
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NIAGARA FRONTIER TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)
:

FFear the )?ca s ended Mareh 31,

2015

2014

+
Operating activities:
Cash callected From customers
Casl:i paid for employee wages and benefis
Casli paid o vendors and supplices
Recdipts (payments) to other funds
Cash paid for insurance and injuries

Net operating activities

Non-capital financing activitics:
Opeating assistance

;
Capital and related financing activities:

Repagments of long-remn debr

Prodeeds from issuance ol long-teom debt

]?.scr;ow funds, net

Linterest paid

Martgage recording tax

Capital grants and conteibutions

Additions to capital assets

Cr:né:tm(:t,iou retainage, net

Peodeeds from sale of capital assels

Passenpger facility chazges

Aleport noise abatement

Othge

Met capital and related financing actvities

Investing activities:
Intefest income
Met change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of vear
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Recanciliation 1o Balunce Sheets:
Cash and cash equvalents

Uneistreted

Restricted

Toral casly and cash equivalenss

Sve sndependent amlitors' report.

NFTA  Meteo  Total NETA

Mctro Total

$ 68,202 3 36,382 $104,584 § 67246

S 37922 $103,168

(31,442) (102,315) (133,757)  (28,326)  (91.943) (1204469)
(26,819) (20,748) (47,57)  {(27.652) (31,165) (38,517
5899 (5,899) . B30 (BA30)
(444)  (2,247) (2,69 @43)  (2,053)  (2300)
15,306 (94,827)  (79,43D) 19253 (95671)  (16,418)
898 104,973 105,871 880 100310 101,190
(101,382) (336) (W01,718)  (13957)  (4981)  (18,938)
87,105 - 87,105 2,513 2,515
315 . 315 314 314
(5,002) (82)  (5,084)  (7.839) ©9)  (7,938)
- (326) {926) 464 464
9,795 21271 31,066 14,089 4384 18,473
(7,288)  (10,737) (18,028)  (9315) (15,138)  (22,453)
(80) 326 246 (42) 331 (311
88 {19) 69 14 152 166
9,518 - 9,518 10,176 - I0176
(4,693) - (4,693 (71290) N 1)
(3,181) (864)  (4,045) (1,11} (181 {1,202)
(14,805) 8,633  (6,172)  {(13,047) (13,068)  (26,115)
109 6 115 143 15 156
1,598 18,785 20,383 7220 (8416)  {1,187)
69,814 2,177 7991 62585 10,593 73178
$ 71412 § 20962 $.92.374_ 5 60814 S_ 21775 71,991
$ 26270 $ 20,179 § 46,440 S 23335 S L7609 § 25,104
45,142 783 45,925 40,479 408 46,887
$ 71,412 $ 20,962 § 92,374 S 69814 S 2177 S 7199
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NIAGARA FRONTHIR TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

I*ar the years ended Mazch 31, 2015 2014

NFTA Metro Tatal NITTA Mezro I'otal

Recoacitiation of apeating loss to ner
cash used 1 operating, activities:
Operatiny toss $ (14,924) § (130,866) % (145,790) 5 (17.540) S {128967) S (146,507)
Adustiments to reconciie openting loss
to et cash from opesting activities:

Liepreciaion 25,761 28,749 54,510 27,987 25,034 53,021
C(rther poswemployment benefirs, net 2,055 10,933 12,988 2,472 11,626 14,098
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Recervables 801 (339 462 (398} (130} (728}
Materials and supplics mveniory 4 (386) (382) 13 (201 {188)
Prepaid expenses and other 108 35 143 (148} 4] {349
Accounts payeble and accrued expenses 397y (1,259) (1,656) 610 (474) 136
Customer deposits (954) (1,451) {2,405) {204 578 5358
Due rof from aftiliate 1,581 (1,581) - 4,400 {4,400 -
Fstimated hability for seli<insuved claims 359 1,338 1,697 728 1,204 1,992
Payable to NYS Retirernent 1,002 - 1,002 1,349 - 1,349
Ner cash from {{or) operating activities § 15396 § (D4,B27) § (79,431) S 15,233 3 (95671) § (7GAI8)

See dnddepenident aseditors’ veport.
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The Board of Conunissioners
Niagara Froatier Transporiation Anthoriry

We have audited, m accordance with the anditing standards generally aceepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable 1o financial audits contained in Gowvermment Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States, the balance sheets of Niagara Treatier Transportation
Authority (the Authority) (2 component unit of the State of New York), a business-type activity, as of March
31, 2015, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash fows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, We have also andited the Authority’s

internal control over financial reporting as of Mareh 31, 2015, based ou Insernal Control — Inteprated Franiework
issued by the Committee of Sponsonng Organizadons c)f the Treadway Commission (COSO). We and hawve
issued our combined repost thereon dated June 25, 2015,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Tn planning and pedforming our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authorily’s internal
contrel over financial reporting (nternal Lontroi) to determine the audit procedures that ate appropriale in
the circomstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the Anancial statements, and for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the elfeciiveness of the Authorty's internal control.

A deficiency in internal conteel exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, mn the normal course of performing thelr assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combinadon of deficiencies, in
internal conteod, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a materal misstatement of the entiry’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A signilficant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal conirol that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. '

Our consideration of intersal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 1 internal contro] that might be matesial weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these lmttations, during our audit we did vot idenufy any deficiencies in
miernal control that we coasider to be material weaknesses. [lowever, matenial weaknesses may exise that
lrave not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaming reasonable assurance abour whether the Authory’s financial statements are free from
material misstaiement, we periormed tests of ils compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulatons,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncomphance with which could have a direct and matenial cffect on the
determination ol finsncial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion oa compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noscompliance or other matters that ase required 1o be repotted
undes Goversment Auditing Standands.

2
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, This report I an integral part of an andit performed in accordence with
Gosernment Anditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly,
this communicagion 1s not suitable for any other purpose,

June 25, 2015
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The Board of Commissioners
Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority

We have awdiled, in accordance with auditng standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the balance sheet of Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority {the Authority) (2 component unit of the
State of New York), a business-type activity, as of March 31, 2015, and the related staterments of revenue,
expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes 1o the
financial statements, and we have issued our report thereon dated june 25, 2015,

In eonnection with our audit, nothing eame o our attention that caused us 1o believe that the Authority failed
tor comply with §2925(3)(I) of the New York State Public Auvthorities Law regarding investment guidelines
duting the year ended March 31, 2015, However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining
knowledge of such noncompliance.  Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other maiters
may have come 1o our attenton regarding the Authority’s noncompliance with the above roles and
regulations.

The purpose of this repozt is solely 1o describe the scope and results of ous Lesting. This communication i
not suitable for any other purpose.

June 25, 2015
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Regular Meeting
June 25, 2015

CORPORATE:

2. C. 2) Authorization _for NYSDOT _Aviation _Capital Project Grant
Asgreement, Air Cargo Ramp Liohting Improvement Project, PIN No.
5A00.99, BNIA

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board authorize an Agreement with the
New York State Department of Transportation (NYS DOT) for $§328,000.00 in funding from the
NYS DOT 2014-15 Aviation Capital Grant Program for the Air Cargo Ramp Lighting
Improvements Project at the Buffalo Niagara International Airport (BNIA).

INFORMATION: In June 2014 the Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority (NFTA) applied
to the NYS DOT for $468,000.00 in funding from the 2014-15 Aviation Capital Grant program
for the Air Cargo Ramp Lighting Improvements Project. The program was a competitive
solicitation process for projects that enhance safety and security at airports across New York
State. The NFTA was awarded $328,000.00 or 70% of the project cost in December 2014. The
remainder of the funding ($140,000 or 30% of the project cost) will be provided by the Airport
Development Fund (ADF). The project will provide for the design, procurement, and installation
of new lighting to the air cargo ramp, which will ensure safe, secure, and sustainable cargo
operations at BNIA.

FUNDING: Funding for the project is as follows:

PIN Project Description Total Amount NYS DOT ADF Share
Share (70%) (30%)

Air Cargo Ramp
5A00.99 Lighting Improvements § 468,000 $ 328,000 $ 140,000
Project, BNIA

“RESQLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes an Agreement
with the New York State Department of Transportation to receive

_ funding for the Air Cargo Ramp_Lighting Improvements Project at
the Buffalo Niagara International Airport as described
herginabove; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director, her
designee and/or the Chairman, be and are hereby authorized to
execute an Agreement with the New York State Department of
Transportation for funding as described hereinabove; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said Agreement shall
include such additional terms, conditions and safeguards to the
Authority as deemed appropriate by the General Counsel; and

CORPORATE 2. C. (2)
Comm. 16M-7
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Regular Meeting
June 25, 2015

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chief Financial Officer,
be and he is hereby authorized to make payments under said
Agreement upon certification by the Chief Financial Officer, that
such payments are in order.”

CORPORATE 2. C. (2)
Comm. 16M-7

20 Page 71 of 94



Regular Meeting
June 25, 2015

CORPORATE:

2. C. 3) Authorization for Collective Bargaining Agreement, Buffalo Niagara
International Airpert Superior Officers Association, NFTA

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board authorize a six (6) year Collective
Bargaining Agreement between the Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority and the BNIA
Superior Officers Association (SOA) for the period April 1, 2013 through March 31, 2019.

INFORMATION: The BNIA Superior Officers Association represents four (4) officers. Under
the proposed agreement, members of this bargaining unit will receive the following wages:

Fiscal Year | Wage Increase | Total Wage Expense | Increase from Prior Year
2013-2014 | 0% $211,270 50

2014-2015 | 2.25% (Retro) | $218,874 57,604

2015-2016 | 2.25% $225,190 $6,316

2016-2017 | 2.25% $235,828 510,638

2017-2018 | 2.25% $241,972 $6,144

2018-2019 | 2.25% 5247736 $5,764

Effective 7-1-15 Superior Officers Association employees will contribute 10% of the monthly
premium cost for either single or family coverage in the new High Deductible Health Plan
(HDHP) or a replacement plan selected by the Company. The annual payment for waiver of
medical insurance will be increased for single coverage from $1,000 to $3,000 and for family
from $2,000 to $5,000. Longevity pay eligibility for 30 years of service increased from $1,300
to $1,700.

The additional cost of this agreement is approximately $58,511 for a six year contract or §9,752 per
annum.

FUNDING: Funding for this Agreement was included in the Authority’s FYE *16 budget and
the five-year plan.

“RESOLVED, that the Board-hereby approves a Collective
Bargaining  Agreement  between the Niagara  Frontier
Transportation Authority and Buffalo Niagara International Airport
Superior Officers Association for the period commencing April 1,
2013 through March 31, 2019; and

BE IT FURTHER RESCLVED, that the Board authorizes the
Executive Director, her designee and/or the Chairman to enter into
a Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Buffalo Niagara
International Airport Superior Officers Association covering the
period April 1, 2013 through March 31, 2019, upon terms and
conditions set forth hereinabove and as negotiated; and

CORPORATE 2. C. (3)
Comm. 16M-7

- Page 72 of 94



Regular Meeting
June 25, 2015

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said Agreement shall
include such terms, conditions and such safeguards to the
Authority as deemed appropriate by the General Counsel; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chief Financial Officer
be and he is hereby authorized to make payments upon terms of
said Agreement, upon certification of the Director, Human
Resources, that such payments are in order.”

CORPORATE 2. C. (3)
Comm. 16M-7
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Regular Meeting
June 25, 2615

CORPORATE:

2. C. (4) Authorization for Agreement, Health Works WNY, Enc., Medical
Testing Services, NETA

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board authorize a three (3) year
Agreement with two (2) one-year renewal periods at the NFTA’s option with Health Works
WNY, Inc. for the provision of medical testing services. The total cost for the three (3) years of
service will be approximately $75,657.00. The cost for each of the two renewal years will be
$25,900.00 for year 4 and $26,315.00 for year 5.

INFORMATION: The purpose of the contract is to provide medical testing services to meet all
regulatory compliance issues as mandated by the Occupational Safety & Health Administration
(OSHA) and the NFTA’s internal Bloodborne Pathogen and Respiratory Protection programs.
The medical provider will provide hepatitis immunizations, tuberculin skin tests, respirator fit
tests including the required OSHA questionnaire, and pulmonary function tests as directed by the
NFTA Safety Department to insure the safety of NFTA employees as well as to stay in
compliance with the current OSHA regulations and internal NFTA policies and programs.

The NFTA developed and issued a Request for Proposals in accordance with Procurement
Guidelines. Responses were received from:

Health Works WNY- West Seneca, NY

Comprehensive Occupational Medical Services, P.C.- North Tonawanda, NY
Great Lakes Physician Services- Buffalo, NY

Riverfront Medical, Williamsville, NY

A team comprised of the Assistant Manager of Procurement; the Manager of System Safety &
Security, the Safety Programs Administrator, and the Occupational Health Nurse conducted the
evaluation. Proponents were evaluated based on qualifications, cost, and experience. Health
Works of WNY was selected based on the technical qualifications to the project, experience, and
competitive pricing.

FUNDING: Funding is provided in the operating budgets.

“RESOLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes an Agreement
with Health Works WNY, Inc. for medical testing services as
described hereinabove; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director, her
designee and/or the Chairman, be and are hereby authorized to
execute an Agreement with Health Works WNY, Inc. for medical
testing services as described hereinabove; and

CORPORATE 2. C. (4)
Comm. 16M-7
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Regular Meeting
June 25, 2015

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said Agreement shall
include such additional terms, conditions and safeguards to the
Authority as deemed appropriate by the General Counsel; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chief Financial Officer,
be and he is hereby authorized to make payments under said
Agreement upon certification by the Director, HSEQ, that such
payments are in order.”

CORPORATE 2. C. (4)
Comm. 16M-7
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CORPORATE:

2. C. (5) Authorization for Agreement, Zenger Group, Engineering Printing

Services, NIFTA

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board award the subject term contract to
the Zenger Group with a total bid amount of $56,117.13. This is a one year contract with four
one-year options at the sole discretion of the Authority.

INFORMATION: This contract is for the printing of project manuals, drawings, and other
documents used in the bidding of Engineering Department design and construction contracts,
Costs are based on previous usage, anticipated quantities, and types of documents.

This contract was publicly bid with the following results:

Zenger Group Panther Graphics, Inc. D4,LLC
Year 1 $8,320.00 $8,712.00 $12,315.00
Year 2 $9,984.00 $10,422.00 $14,778.00
Year 3 $10,604.40 $10,422.00 $16,002.00
Year 4 $12,506.64 $14,903.00 $18,880.36
Year 5 $14,699.09 $16,527.00 $20,957.27
TOTAL $56,117.13 $60,986.00 $82,932.63

FUNDING: The funding for this contract is included in the individual capital project budget or
the Business Center operating accounts that use this service.

“RESQOLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes an Agreement
with Zenger Group for printing services for the Engineering
Department as described hereinabove; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director, her
designee and/or the Chairman, be and are hereby authorized to
execute an Agreement with Zenger Group for printing services for
the Engineering Department as described hereinabove; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said Agreement shall
include such additional terms, conditions and safeguards to the
Authority as deemed appropriate by the General Counsel; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chief Financial Officer,
be and he is hereby authorized to make payments under said
Agreement upon certification by the Director, Engineering, that
such payments are in order.”

CORPORATE 2. C. (5)
Comm. 16M-7
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CORPORATE:

2. C. ©) Authorization for Lease Amendment Agreement, Traci Takacs d/b/a
Replete Nutrition, 247 Cayuga Road

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board authorize a Lease Amendment with
Traci Takacs d/b/a Replete Nutrition for leased space at 247 Cayuga Road, Cheektowaga.

INFORMATION: Ms. Takacs has been a tenant at 247 Cayuga Road since February of this
year. Her current lease term expires on January 31, 2018. This amendment will increase the
leased office space square footage from 168 to 448. The additional 280 square feet will have the
same rental rate as the original leased space, which is currently $11 per square foot for this C+
office space with a 3% annual escalator. Currently the office space rent is $1,848 per year or
$154 per month. With the additional square footage the office space rent will be $4,928 per vear
or $410.66 per month. All other terms and conditions will remain the same.

FUNBDING: No funding is necessary.

- “RESOLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes a Lease
Amendment Agreement with Traci Takacs d/b/a Replete Nutrition,
for use of space at 247 Cayuga Road as described hereinabove; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director, her
designee and/or the Chairman, be and hereby are authorized to
execute a Lease Amendment Agreement with Traci Takacs d/b/a
Replete Nutrition with terms and condifions as set forth above and
as negotiated; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said Lease Amendment
Agreement shall include such terms, conditions and safeguards to
the Authority as deemed appropriate by the General Counsel.”

CORPORATE 2. C.(6)
Comm. 16M-7
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June 25, 2015
3. AVIATION BUSINESS GROUP REPORT
A. Aviation Committee Report
B. Financial Update
C. Business Update
D. Resolutions
Comm. 16M-7
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Aviation Resolutions

1. There are no proposed resolutions at this time.

Comm. 16M-7
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SURFACE TRANSPORTATION BUSINESS GROUP REPORT
Surface Transportation Committee Report

Financial Update

Business Update

Resolutions

oow

Comm. 16M-7
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Surface Transportation Resoluiions

i

Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority, Acceptance of Surface
Transportation Resolutions 4. D. (1) through 4. D. (6)

Authorization for Agreement, Ferguson Electric Construction Co., Inc.,
Catenary and Insulator Replacement Phase 2, LRRT

Authorization for Agreement, M/E Engineering, Design Support Services,
CNG Fueling Station, Metro

Authorization for Procurement, Global Traffic Technologies, Traffic
Signal Priority Equipment; Niagara Street Corridor, Metro

Authorization for College/University Pass Agreement, Erie Community
College

Authorization for College/University Pass Agreement, Canisius College

Authorization for Agreement, IBI Group, Enhancement Services, NITTEC

Comm. 16M-7
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Regular Meeting

June 25, 2015
SURFACE:
4. D. (i) Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority, Acceptance of Surface

Transportation Resolutions 4. D. (1) through 4. D. (6)

The Executive Director advised that Items 4. D. (1) through 4. D. (6} have been discussed with
the Board of Commissioners of the NFTA, and the Board is unanimously in favor of all subject
Resolutions.

Whereupon, it was moved by Commissioner Demakos, seconded by Commissioner Hicks, that
the following Resolution be adopted:

“RESOLVED, that the Resolutions of the Niagara Frontier
Transportation Authority, identified as numbers 4. D. (1) through
4. D. (6) and dated June 25, 2015 as set forth herein, be and hereby
are accepted and approved in their entirety.”

AYES: SLOMA, DEMAKOS, DURAND*, ANSARI, GURNEY, HICKS,
PERRY*, WILCOX

ABSTENTION: PERRY [*ltem 4. D. 1 and *ltem 4. D. 4 oniy}
DURAND [*ltem 4. D. 4 and *ltem 4. D. 5 only]

NOES: NONE

ADOPTED

SURFACE 4. D. (i) e  PAGE -i-
Comm. 16M-7
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SURFACE:

4. D. 1y Authorization_for_Agreement, Ferguson Electric Construction Co.,
Ine., Catenary and Insulator Replacement Phase 2, LRRT

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board award the subject construction
contract to Ferguson Electric Construction Co., Inc. for a lump sum amount of $535,000.00.

INFORMATION: The catenary power system provides dc power to the light rail vehicles. It
consists of copper wire, insulators, and support system. The project objectives are to improve
reliability, availability, and maintainability of the catenary power system. This will be
accomplished in part, by replacing 7,640 feet of the overhead contact system with new contact
wire, insulators, and hanger supports at the following three (3) areas:

o Events Station (inbound and outbound)
e Utica Station (inbound)
e LaSalle Station (inbound)

The NFTA will furnish the overhead contact wire, insulators, and supports to the contractor for
the project.

This project was publicly advertised in accordance with NFTA Procurement Guidelines. Four
(4) sets of contract documents were distributed to potential bidders with two (2) responding as
shown below. Due to funding constraints, the fixed allowance amount was reduced from
$60,000.00 to $10,000.00 as permitted by the bid documents. Both bids and the Engineer’s
estimate were adjusted equally, as follows:

Totai Bid Amount of Total Bid amount

Company Bid with Allowance
Adjustment
Engineer’s Estimate $532,977.65 $482,977.65
Ferguson Electric
Buffalo, NY $585,000.00 $535,000.00

Angelo A Veanes, President
O'Connell Electric Co.

Victor, NY 14564 $633,000.00 $583,000.00
Victor E. Salerno, CEO

The two (2) potential bidders that did not bid are located outside of the Western New York area.
They stated the project was not large enough to compete with local contractors.

It has been determined that the low bidder, Ferguson Electric, Inc., has the knowledge,
understanding, and ability to successfully accomplish the scope of work for this project.

SURFACE 4. D. (1)
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The NETA Affirmative Action/EEO office has been briefed on the bid results. The contractor
proposed MWBE participation of 7.4% for the project.

FUNDING: Funding for this project is 100% MRF Funds in Account No. 12-0000000-3188-2-
9370.

“RESOLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes an Agreement
with Ferguson Electric Construction Co., Inc. as described
hereinabove for a lump sum of $585,000.00; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director, her
designee and/or the Chairman, be and are hereby authorized to
execute an Agreement with Ferguson Electric Construction Co.,
Inc. as described hereinabove; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said Agreement shall
include such additional terms, conditions and safeguards to the
Authority as deemed appropriate by the General Counsel; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chief Financial Officer,
be and he is hereby authorized to make payments under said
Agreement upon certification by the Director, Engineering, that
such payments are in order.”

SURFACE 4. D. (1)
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Regular Meeting
June 25, 2015

SURFACE:

4. . 2) Autherization for Agreement, M/E Engineering, Design Support
Services, CNG Fueling Station, Metro

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board award the subject design support
contract for the Metro — CNG Fueling Station at Frontier Bus Garage Project to term consultant
M/E Engineering for a total cost plus fixed fee not-to-exceed contract amount of $199,908.00.

INFORMATION: The purpose of this project is to design, construct, operate, and maintain a
high capacity fast fill Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) Fueling Station at the Frontier Bus
Garage. The station will be used to fuel the CNG transit vehicles that are scheduled to be
delivered in December of 2015.

The project provides for the installation of four fueling dispensers, two compressors, and a twin
tower dryer, piping, control building, electrical motor and control distribution wiring, and control
system. In addition, the operation and maintenance of the CNG compressor station is included in
the contract. These contracts have been previously awarded by the Board.

The NFTA issued a scope of services and request for a cost estimate in accordance with M/E
Engineering’s term consultant agreement to provide design support services during construction
for the CNG Fueling Station Project. M/E Engineering successfully completed the initial design
portion of the project and it is most familiar with the scope and intent of the project. They have
demonstrated that they have the expertise to provide design support services for the CNG
Fueling Station Project.

The scope of services provided under this agresment will include, but is not limited to,
participation in monthly progress reviews; participation in preliminary and final design reviews;
review of system and operational hazard analysis; testing and commissioning; technical support;
and preparation and negotiation of change orders.

It has been determined that M/E Engineering understands the scope of services, has the
necessary experience, and the technical qualifications required to perform the work. Resulting
negotiations with M/E Engineering are as follows:

Engineer's Estimate $219,197.00
Initial Proposal $256,976.00
Negotiated Contract $199,908.00

Construction monitoring for this project will be provided by the NFTA Engineering Department.

SURFACE 4. D. (2)
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FUNDING: Funding is included in Account No. 3113-2-3434 and is as follows:

FTA 80% $159,926.40
NYSDOT 10% $19,990.80
NFTA 10% $19,990.80

TOTAL $199,508.00

“RESOLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes an Agreement
with M/E Engineering for design support services for the CNG
Fueling Station at the Frontier Garage at a cost not-to-exceed
$199,908.00 as described hereinabove; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director, her
designee and/or the Chairman, be and are hereby authorized to
execute an Agreement with M/E Engineering for the design
support services for the CNG Fueling Station at the Frontier
Garage as described hereinabove; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said Agreement shall
include such additional terms, conditions and safeguards to the
Authority as deemed appropriate by the General Counsel; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chief Financial Officer,
be and he is hereby authorized to make payments under said
Agreement upon certification by the Director, Engineering, that
such payments are in order.”

SURFACE 4. D. (2)

June 25, 2015
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SURFACE:

4. D. 3) Authorization for Procurement, Global Traffic Technologies, Traffic
Signal Priority Equipment, Niagara Street Corridor, Metro

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board award the traffic signal priority
equipment procurement contract to Global Traffic Technologies (GTT) for the lump sum amount
of $213,656.12.

INFORMATION: The purpose of this procurement is to provide the necessary equipment to
support the Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) portion of this project. This includes the
purchase of vehicle transmitters and traffic signal light receivers and controliers. This equipment
will be incorporated into the Traffic Signal Priority (TSP) system and will assist NFTA buses in
maintaining their bus schedules on the Niagara Street Corridor.

The TSP system will perform this operation by communicating with the vehicle’s onboard
computer aided dispatch and automatic vehicle locator (CAD/AVL) system. The CAD/AVL
system will transmit a signal to the bus TSP system when the bus is traveling behind schedule.
As the bus approaches a signal light, the TSP system will hold green lights on the approaching
signal for an additional 5 seconds allowing the bus to pass.

This equipment will be purchased using Federal Government discount rates from GSA IT
Schedule 70, Contract No. GS-35F-521AA. Global Traffic Technologies is the leader in
supplying traffic signal priority equipment with 85% of the market share in this product
category. NFTA staff will install the TSP equipment onto the Metro buses. The City of Buffalo
will install the TSP equipment onto its signal light poles and controllers.

The table below show the comparison of the Engineer’s estimate to the actual cost of the
material.

Proposal
Engineer’s Estimate $256,024.00
Global Traffic Technologies $213,656.12

The NFTA Affirmative Action/EEO office has been briefed on this material procurement and
concurs with the recommendation for Board approval.

SURFACE 4. D. (3)
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FUNDING: Funding source for this project is found in account 12-0000000 3210-2-3409 and is
as follows:

FTA NY-04-0099 80% $170,924.90
NYS PIN 5823.79 10% $ 21,365.61
NFTA 10% $ 21,365.61

TOTAL $213,656.12

“RESOLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes the procurement
of traffic signal priority equipment from Global Traffic
Technologies (GTT) for a lump sum of $213,656.12, as described
hereinabove; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Manager, Procurement,
be and she is hereby authorized to issue Purchase Orders to Global
Traffic Technologies (GTT) for the traffic signal priority
equipment as described hereinabove; and

BE IT FURTHER RESCOLVED, that said Purchase Orders shall
include such additional terms, conditions and safeguards to the
Authority as deemed appropriate by the General Counsel; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chief Financial Officer,
be and he is hereby authorized to make payments under said
Purchase Order upon certification by the Director, Public Transit,
that such payments are in order.”

SURFACE 4. D. (3)
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SURFACE:

4. D. @) Authorization  for  College/University _ Pass _ Agreement,
Erie Community College

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board authorize a new three-year
College University Pass Agreement with Erie Community College for school years 2015-
2016 through 2017-2018.

INFORMATION: The Board previously approved a three-year College/University Transit
Pass Agreement with Erie Community College (ECC) that entitled all registered
undergraduate students that are paying the College transportation fee unlimited access 1o
regular Metro fixed route service through the end of school year 2014-2013.

Staff has negotiated a new three-year College/University Transit Pass Agreement for
unlimited access to regular fixed route service. The discounted fee structure for access to
Metro’s fixed route service has been negotiated for the three-year agreement as follows:
Year 1 - $47, Year 2 - $48 and Year 3 - $49; with an average fee of $48 per student pass over
the three years. The existing three-year agreement that expires at the end of school year
2014-2015 had an average fee of $41. The revenue generated by this Agreement is estimated
to be $1,056,000.

FUNDING: No funding is required.

“RESOLVED, that the Board herby authorizes an Agreement with
Erie Community College for a three-year College/University
Transit Pass Program that allows students access to fixed route
service for the school calendar years of 2015-2018 as described
hereinabove; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director, her
designee and/or the Chairman, be and herby are authorized to
execute the Agreement with Erie Community College for the
school calendar years of 2015-2018 with terms and conditions as
set forth above and negotiated; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said Agreement and any
renewal Agreements shall include such terms, conditions and such
additional provisions and safeguards to the Authority as deemed
appropriate by the General Counsel.”

SURFACE 4. D. (4)
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June 25, 2015
SURFACE:
4. D. (%) Authorization  for  College/University  Pass  Agreement,

Canisius College

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board authorize a new one-year
College University Pass Agreement with Canisius College for the school year 2015-2016.

INFORMATION: The Board previously approved a one-year College/University Transit
Pass Agreement with Canisius that entitled all registered undergraduate students unlimited
access to regular Metro fixed route service through the end of school year 2014-2015 at a rate
of $45 per semester.

Staff has negotiated a new one-year College/University Transit Pass Agreement with the
college for unlimited access to Metro’s fixed route service. The discounted fee structure for
this access has been negotiated at a per student rate of $48 per semester for the contract year.
The revenue generated by this Agreement is estimated to be $268,000.

FUNDING: No funding is required.

“RESOLVED, that the Board herby authorizes an Agreement with
Canisius College for a one-year College/University Transit Pass
Program that allows students access to fixed route service for the
school calendar year of 2015-2016 as described hercinabove; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director, her
designee and/or the Chairman, be and herby are authorized to
execute the Agreement with Canisius College for the school
calendar year of 2015-2016 with terms and conditions as set forth
above and negotiated; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said Agreement and any
renewal Agreements shall include such terms, conditions and such
additional provisions and safeguards to the Authority as deemed
appropriate by the General Counsel.”

SURFACE 4. D. (5) Comm. 16M-7
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SURFACKE:

4, D. (6) Authorization for Agreement, IBI Group, Enhancement Services,
NITTEC

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board authorize an agreement with IBI Group
to provide services to enhance the Niagara International Transportation Technology Coalition
(NITTEC) Advanced Traffic Management System (ATMS) for an amount not-to-exceed $150,000.

INFORMATION: The NITTEC ATMS is used to improve traffic safety on the roadway network
by reducing the number of incidents, increase the capacity of the roadway network by managing
traffic congestion, and minimize the motorist frustration by providing them with traffic information.
The ATMS is comprised of a variety of field devices used to continuously gather roadway/traffic
information, software to receive information from the roadside devices, and a Graphical User
Interface (GUI) used by the operators to interface with the system. The GUI is used to display traffic
information and to manage and monitor roadway events. Traffic information is entered and
maintained in the GUI for dissemination of information to the public and other agencies. The
information from the GUT is also used to populate the traveler information on the NITTEC website,

The consultant will be responsible for enhancements to the Crossroads system, including Crossroads
Support Maintenance, Oracle to SQL DB Conversion, Crossroads ATMS Code Conversion to
Support Visual Studio 2012, Integration Support for Expansion of 13B Data, Integration Support for
Crossroads, Crossroads User Interface Enhancements, Crossroads Travel Time Modifications, and
Additional Support for Virtualization Effort. Additional tasks may be identified during the term of
the contract.

IBI Group installed the NITTEC ATMS under a contract with the New York State Department of
Transportation. The system that IBI installed includes proprietary software. In accordance with the
NFTA Procurement Guidelines, this is based on single source conditions. The use of 1Bl Group for
this effort is critical because of the propriety nature of the software and their knowledge of the
system configurations and operations.,

It is appropriate for the NFTA to enter into an agreement on behalf of NITTEC since it serves as the
Host agent for all types of NITTEC monies.

FUNDING: Funding is included in the NITTEC SFY 2015-2016-Budget:--—-— - -~ -—

“RESOLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes an Agreement
with 1Bl Group, for enhancement services to NITTEC’s Advanced
Traffic Management Systems for an amount not-to-exceed
$150,000.00 as described above; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director, her
designee and/or the Chairman, be and are hereby authorized to
execute an Agreement with IBI Group as described above, for the
total amount not-to-exceed $150,000.00; and

SURFACE 4. D. (6)
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BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said Agreement shall
include such additional terms, conditions and safeguards to the
Authority as deemed appropriate by the General Counsel; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chief Financial Officer,
be and he is hereby authorized to make payments under said
Agreement upon certification by the Executive Director, NITTEC,
that such payments are in order.”

SURFACE 4. D. (6) :
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June 25, 2015
6. General Counsel Report - None
7. Executive Session - None
8. Adjournment

At approximately 12:50 p.m., the Vice Chairman indicated that there was no
further business coming before the Board, whereupon it was moved by Commissioner
Wilcox, seconded by Commissioner Durand, and unanimously approved that the Regular
Meeting of the Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority and Niagara Frontier Transit
Metro System, Inc. be adjourned.

AYES: SLOMA, DEMAKOS, DURAND, ANSARI, GURNEY,
HICKS, PERRY, WILCOX

NOES: NONE
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